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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

 
  
Notice is hereby given that the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Niraj Ispat 
Industries Limited will be on Friday, September 29nd, 2023 at 11:00 A.M. held at its Registered 
Office of the Company situated at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar 
Bazar, Delhi-110006 to transact the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS : 
 

1. To Consider and Adopt the standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financials Year Ended March 31, 2023 i.e Balance Sheet as at 31st  March, 2023, the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st  March, 2023 along with the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. Appointment of Ms. Vaishali  Chaudhry (DIN 01719640) as a Director, liable to retire by 
rotation 

 

       To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification the following resolution as 
an Ordinary resolution: 

 

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Vaishali  Chaudhry (DIN 01719640) a Director, liable to 
retire by rotation who retires by rotation at this Meeting, and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.” 

 
SPECIAL	BUSINESS	:	
	
3. 				Approval	 for	 Increase	 in	remuneration	of	Mr.	Chaitanya	Chaudhry,	Director	and	CEO	(DIN:	

06813394)	
	
        To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as Special 

Resolution. 

 

“RESOLVED	THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197, 198 read with Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and pursuant to the 
approval of the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”) of the Company on the 
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee and subject to 
such other approvals as may be necessary, the approval of the Members of the company be and is 
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hereby accorded for payment of remuneration to Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry ((DIN: 06813394), 
Director and CEO of the Company, upto the maximum limit of Rs.11,00,000/- (Rupees Elven Lakhs 
only) per annum with effect from 1st April, 2023, provided that such variation or increase is with in 
specified limit as under the relevant provisions of Section 196, 197 and Schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 

								RESOLVED	FURTHER	THAT the approval of the shareholders of the company be and is hereby 
accorded for the remuneration payable to, including the remuneration to be paid in the event of 
loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure of the Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry 
(DIN: 06813394) as Director of the company, the company can pay the aggregate of remuneration 
as specified above to Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (DIN: 06813394), as and when required subject to 
any approvals as may require for the payment of same. 

 

							RESOLVED	 FURTHER	 THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of 
Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable to give effect to this resolution and to 
settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard.” 

 

 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors             
                                                                                        For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED            

 
Place: New Delhi  
Date: 06.09.2023  

Sd/- 
Chaitanya Chaudhry 

DIN: 06813394  
Designation: Director and CEO 

Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar, 
Ghaziabad 20100 
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NOTES: 
 
 

(1) Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for remote e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
a)  Members holding shares in physical mode who have not registered/ updated their email 

addresses with the Company, are requested to register/ update the same by click on 
http://www.skylinerta.com/submit-document-to-rta.php or email with details of folio number 
and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN Card to the company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent Skyline Financial Services Private Limited (herein referred as ‘RTA’ ) at 
compliances@skylinerta.com or info@skylinerta.com. 

 
b) Members holding shares in dematerialized mode, who have not registered/ updated their 

email addresses with their Depository Participants, are requested to register/ update their 
email addresses with the Depository Participants with whom they maintain their demat 
accounts. 

 
(2) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote on a poll and such proxy need not be a member of the company. A person can act 
as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. In order to be effective the 
proxies should be received by the company at its registered office not less than 48 hours 
before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of corporate including companies, societies 
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing 
body. 
 

(3) Members are requested to bring their attendance slip to the meeting, Proxies should fill in the 
attendance slip for attending the meeting. 

 
(4) Members are requested to quote their Folio Number/Client ID, in all correspondence and 

intimate any change in their address to the Share Transfer Agent/Depository Participant 
promptly. 

 
(5)  In accordance with Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 

13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021 (‘MCA’), read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 issued by SEBI (“circulars”), and owing difficulties 
involved in dispatching physical copies, the Notice of the AGM and Annual Report 2022-23 has 
been sent to member of the company, whose email registered with Company / RTA on  
September 01th, 2023. Members may note that the Company will not send physical/ hard copies 
of the Annual Report 2022-23 and Notice of AGM. 
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(6) In compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, read with Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 
2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 
2021,and read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and other applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (MCA) and SEBI (Collectively called “relevant circulars), Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent Skyline Financial Services Private Limited (herein referred as ‘RTA’). 
Members who email is not registered may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will 
also be available on the Company’s website i.e.www.nirajispat.in and websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com respectively. 

 
(7) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the Registered 

Office of the Company between 11.00 AM to 1.00 PM on any working day till the date of the 
meeting. 

 
 

(8) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its members facility to 
exercise their right to votes on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 37th Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) though remote e-voting Services provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL). For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting system on 
the date of the AGM shall be Disabled by NSDL. 
 

(9) The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Monday, 18th September, 2023 to Thursday, 28nd September, 2023 (both days 
inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

 
(10) Pursuant to Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has fixed Saturday, 23rd September 2023 as Cut of date for 
the purpose of determining shareholders for voting rights. 

 
(11) The E-voting period begins on Tuesday, 26th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Thursday, 28th September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. 
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12.   PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, THE BRIEF PROFILE OF 
DIRECTORS ELIGIBLE FOR RE-APPOINTMENT ITEM NO. 2 IS AS FOLLOWS:- 

 

Name of Director Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry 
DIN 01719640 
Date of Birth 19/05/1968 
Date of first appointment on the 
Board 29/11/2001 
Terms and Condition Re-appointment as Director of the company liable to retire by 

rotation 
Qualifications Intermediate  

Expertise and Experience in 
specific functional areas 

Approx. 19 years in Marketing 

Names of other entities in which 
the person also holds the 
directorship. 

1. Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 
2. Raj Electricals and Allied Mfg. Private Limited 
3. Crystal Trexim Private Limited 
4. Himalayan Promoters Private Ltd.  

Membership / Chairmanship of 
Committees of listed entities 
(includes only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee) 

 - 

Remuneration last drawn 
(F.Y. 2022-23) 

240,000 p.a

Shareholding in the Company 
(as on 31st March, 2023)  

30400

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the company 

Relative 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013: 
 
1. A statement setting out the material facts in the nature of concern of interest, financial or otherwise 
of every Director and the manager and every other key managerial person and relatives. 
2. Information and facts to enable members to understand the meaning, scope and implications of the 
items of business and to take decision thereon. 
3. None of the Director of the Company or their respective relative is concerned or interested, 
financial or otherwise, in passing of the below mentioned resolutions. 
 
ITEM NO. 3 
 
Approval for Increase in remuneration of Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry, Director and CEO (DIN: 
06813394) 

 
Mr. Chaitnya Chaudhry, was appointed and designated as Director of the Company on the Board 
at its Meeting held on 27.02.2015 and as an CEO of the Company by the Board at its Meeting held 
on 31.03.2021.  
 
Further, Considering the Contribution of Mr. Chaitnya Chaudhry and progress made by the 
Company under his leadership and guidance and as per the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its meeting held on 26.06.2023 approved the revision 
in the remuneration of Mr. Chaitnya Chaudhry as enumerated in the Resolution. 
 
It is submitted that based on the projections, the overall managerial remuneration may exceed 
the limits specified in Sec 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Members are request to consider 
the revision in remuneration of Mr. Chaitnya Chaudhry, Director Cum CEO of the Company. 
 
Other than Mr. Chaitnya Chaudhry, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives, are concerned or interested in the Resolution stated in Item No. 3. 
 
Pursuant to the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Audit 
Committee, your directors recommend the Resolution set out in Item No.3 as a Special Resolution 
for your approval. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors             
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED            

 
Place: New Delhi  
Date: 06.09.2023     

Sd/- 
Chaitanya Chaudhry 

DIN: 06813394  
Designation: Director and CEO 

Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201002  

 

9



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, 26th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 
Thursday, 28st September, 2028 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Saturday, 23rd September, 2023, may 
cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share 
in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Saturday, 23rd 
September, 2023. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period Ifyou are not 
registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
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available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able 
to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, 
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user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. 
NSDLwhere the e-Voting is in progress. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at call at : 022 ‐ 4886 7000 and 
022‐ 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 
 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
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available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User 
ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csvivekkumar@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 
also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 

on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call at : 022 ‐ 4886 7000 and 022‐ 2499 7000  or send a request to (Ms. 
PallaviMhatre, Manager or Ms. Soni Singh, Asst. Manager, National Securities Depository Limited, 
Trade World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, SenapatiBapatMarg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 

– 400 013, at the designated)atevoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 

I. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
nirajispatindustries@gmail.com. 

II. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to nirajispatindustries@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login 
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode. 

III. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

IV. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
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Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
 
	
	
	

	
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors            

                                                                                        For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED            
 
Place: New Delhi  
Date: 06.09.2023     

Sd/- 
Chaitanya Chaudhry 

DIN: 06813394  
Designation: Director and CEO 

Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar, 
Ghaziabad -201002  
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Dear	Members,	

 

Your Directors feel pleasure in presenting their 38th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statements of accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

 

FINANCIAL	RESULTS	
	

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 is summarized 
below: 

 

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2023    
(in lakhs) 

Year ended 31.03.2022    
(in lakhs) 

Total Revenue 627.38 533.42 

Total Expenses 404.61 432.63 

Profit/ Loss  before 
Taxation  

222.77 100.79 

Provision for Income 
Tax 

56.48 25.51 
 

Income tax for previous year  0.22 0.24 
 

Provision for Deferred Tax (0.73) (0.23) 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 166.80 75.27 
Prior period adjustments  - 
Profit/(Loss)  for the year after 
tax and prior period 
adjustments 

166.80                   75.27 

 

DIVIDEND	

 
Your Directors intend to plough back available resources for financial requirements and express their 
inability to recommend any dividend for the financial year. 
 
RESERVES	
 
The Company has transferred Rs. 15,00,000/- from the statement of profit and loss to general reserve 
during the year under review. 
	
	

17



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

BUSINESS	OPERATIONS	
 
The fiscal year 2022-23 was a period of relative stability. During the year under review, our Company 
achieved a profit of Rs. 222.77 Lacs before tax as against Profit Rs. 1,00.79 Lacs in the preceding 
financial year. Your company hopes to increase its presence in the business in the Coming years, which 
may increase the top line and also its stability. 
 

     
BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS	AND	KEY	MANAGERIAL	PERSONNEL	

The Board consist of Four (4) Directors and One (1) CFO. 
 
Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (Executive Director cum CEO), Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive 
Director), Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non Executive and Independent Director) and Mr. Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal (Non-  Executive Director and Independent Director) and Mr. Niraj Chaudhry (CFO) as on end of 
the Financial Year.  

 
Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (DIN 01719640) who retires by rotation at this meeting, and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a director of the Company liable to 
retires by rotation. 

 
 
SIGNIFICANT	&	MATERIAL	ORDERS	PASSED	BY	THE		REGULATORS	OR	COURTS	OR	TRIBUNALS	
IMPACTING	THE	GOING	CONCERN	STATUS	OF	THE	COMPANY	

 
      No significant and material orders were passed by any Regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) which 

would impact the going concern status of the company. 
 
	 MATERIAL	CHANGES	AND	COMMITMENTS,	IF	ANY,	AFFECTING	THE	FINANCIAL	POSITION	OF	THE	
COMPANY	 WHICH	 HAVE	 OCCURRED	 BETWEEN	 THE	 END	 OF	 THE	 FINANCIAL	 YEAR	 OF	 THE	
COMPANY	TO	WHICH	THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	RELATE	AND	THE	DATE	OF	THE	REPORT	

	
      No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company have occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 
MANAGEMENT	DISCUSSIONS	AND	ANALYSIS	REPORT	
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report in compliances 
with Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is annexed marked as Annexure‘B’. 

 

SUBSIDIARIES,	JOINT	VENTURE	AND	ASSOCIATE	COMPANY	
 

During the year under review, the Company has no Subsidiary/Joint Venture/ Associate Company. 
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PERFORMANCE	 AND	 FINANCIAL	 POSITION	 OF	 EACH	 OF	 THE	 SUBSIDIARIES,	 ASSOCIATES	 AND	
JOINT	VENTURE	COMPANIES	INCLUDED	IN	THE	CONSOLIDATED	FINANCIAL	STATEMENT	
	

The Company has no subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies so this point is not applicable 
on the Company. 

	
DETAILS	IN	RESPECT	OF	FRAUDS	REPORTED	BY	AUDITORS	UNDER	SUB‐SECTION	(12)	OF	SECTION	
143	OTHER	THAN	THOSE	WHICH	ARE	REPORTABLE	TO	THE	CENTRAL	GOVERNMENT	

 
Auditors have not reported any frauds during the year under review. 

 

PUBLIC	DEPOSITS	

 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit under Section 73 of the    
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. 

 
PARTICULARS	 REGARDING	 CONSERVATION	 OF	 ENERGY,	 TECHNOLOGY	 ABSORPTION	 AND	
FOREIGN	EXCHANGE	EARNINGS	AND	OUTGO	
 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
Outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure	'D' to this Report. 
	
CORPORATE	GOVERNACE	
 

As per Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Compliance with the Corporate Governance Provisions shall not apply in respect of the listed entity 
having paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees Ten Crores and Net worth not exceeding 
Rupees Twenty Five Crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. However, as a good 
governance practice, the Directors Report on Corporate Governance is annexed and form part of this 
report as Annexure	'E'. 

 

CORPORATE	SOCIAL	RESPONSIBILITY	
 
Even though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not 
attracted to the Company yet the Company has been, over the years, pursuing as part of its corporate 
philosophy, an unwritten CSR policy voluntarily which goes much beyond mere philanthropic gestures 
and integrates interest, welfare and aspirations of the community with those of the Company itself in an 
environment of partnership for inclusive development. 

 

BOARDS	OF	DIRECTORS	AND	KEY	MANAGERIAL	PERSONNEL	
 
While selecting Directors, the Company looks for an appropriate balance of skills, experience, 
independence and knowledge to enable them discharge their respective duties and responsibilities 
effectively. The Company has laid down a clear Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
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Personnel and other employees. 
 
DECLARATION	BY	AN	INDEPENDENT	DIRECTOR(S)	

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

 
APPOINTMENT	OF	COMPANY	SECRETARY	
 
The Company has already appointed Mr. Shadman Khan, an Associate Member of the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, as Company Secretary of the Company to hold the office w.e.f. 09th 
February, 2023. 
	
BOARD	MEETINGS	OF	THE	COMPANY	

The Board met 06 times during the financial year. During the 12 months period ended 31st March, 2023. 
Board Meetings were held on 10.04.2022, 30.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 30.09.2022, 14.11.2022, 09.02.2023 

Details of attendance of each Director at various meetings of the Company is as follows: 
 

Name 
Director 

of The Designation Category No. of
 Board 
Meetings 

Last 
attended 

AGM

Mrs. Vaishali Chaudhry Director Non-Executive 
Director

06 Yes 

Mr. Anil Kumar 
Sharma 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director

06 Yes 

Mr. Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Director Executive Director 06 Yes 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

06 Yes 

 
COMMITTEES	OF	THE	BOARD	

Following are the three committees constituted by the Board: 

1. Audit Committee. 
2. Shareholders and Investor Grievance Committee and. 
3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

  
 

1. Audit Committee  
 

         The Audit Committee of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-Executive & 
Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent Director) and Ms. 
Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). The constituted Audit Committee also meets the 
requirements under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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        The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 

nominated by the Board. 
 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, interalia, include overseeing financial reporting 
process, reviewing the financial statements and recommending appointment of Auditors. 

During the year under review, the Committee met Four times on 30.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 
14.11.2022 and 09.02.2023. 
 
The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2022-23 

Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 

 
 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The  Nomination and Remuneration of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-
Executive & Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent 
Director) and Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). 
 
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 
 
The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2022-23 

Held Attended 

Mr.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 
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The Committee’s scope of work includes identifying the persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance, deciding on 
remuneration and policy matters related to remunerations of Directors and laying guidelines for 
remuneration package or compensation. 
 
The Committee has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy relating to the appointment 
and remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The nomination 
and remuneration policy is annexed marked Annexure	‘F’. 

 
 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee(SRC):  
 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-
Executive & Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent 
Director) and Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). 
 
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 
 
The Committee inter alia approves issue of duplicate share certificates and oversees and reviews all 
matters connected with the securities transfer. The Committee also looks into redressal of 
shareholders complaints like transfer/transmission of shares, non- receipt of Annual Report, non 
receipt of declared dividends, etc. During the year, nil complaints were received from investors in 
respect of share transfers.  
 
During the year under review, the Committee met Four times on21.04.2022, 21.07.2022, 21.10.2022 and 
21.01.2023. 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2022-23 
Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Non-Executive 
Director

& Independent 4 4 

 

 
	

OVERALL	REMUNERATION	

	
Details of all elements of remuneration paid to all the Directors are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report. Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of Companies Act 
2013 read with Rule V of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
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Rules, 2014 is given in this report. 
	

DETAILS	 OF	 ESTABLISHMENT	 OF	 VIGIL	 MECHANISM/	 WHISTLE	 BLOWER	 POLICY	 FOR	
DIRECTORS	AND	EMPLOYEES	

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair 
and transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, 
integrity and ethical behavior, the Company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. This policy 
is has been uploaded on the website of the Company- www.nirajispat.in.	

 
	
PREVENTION	OF	SEXUAL	HARRASMENT	OF	WOMEN	AT	WORKPLACE	

 
The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace and 
has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. No case was reported during the year under review.   

	
DIRECTOR’S	RESPONSIBILITY	STATEMENT	

 
Pursuant to Section 134 (3(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors Responsibility 
statement, it is hereby confirmed that:- 
 
(i) In the preparation of the Annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any. 
 
(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that period. 

 
(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 on 

a going concern basis. 
 
(v) The Director had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by company and that internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

(vi) The Director had devised proper system to ensure compliance with provision of all applicable laws 
and such is adequate and operating effectively. 
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AUDITORS	

 

i. Statutory	Auditors	
 

 
M/s Sanjeev Anand & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company hold the  
office from the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual 
General Meeting at such remuneration as may mutually be agreed upon between the auditors and the 
Board of Directors of the Company 
 
The Company has received letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within 
the prescribed limits under Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 
for such appointment within the meaning of Section 139 (1) of the said Act. 

 

ii. Secretarial	Auditor	
 
The secretarial audit of the Company has been conducted by M/s. V Kumar and Associates, Company 
Secretaries (COP No.:10438, FCS: 8976) and their report on the secretarial audit for the year under 
review is annexed hereto is attached as ANNEXURE	‘G'. 

 

AUDITORS	REPORT	
 
All Observations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements are self explanatory and no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks have been made 
by the Statutory Auditors in the said Report. 

 
SHIFTING	OF	REGISTERED	OFFICE	

	
   During the year under review, the Company has not shifted its registered office. 
 
SECRETARIAL	AUDIT	REPORT	

 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark . 

 

PERFORMANCE	EVALUATION	

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, a 
separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the 
Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and 
contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The 
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The 
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the 
Independent Directors. The Board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of 
its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The 
Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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PARTICULARS	OF	LOAN,	GUARANTEES	AND	INVESTMENT	MADE	UNDER	186	OF	THE	COMPANIES	
ACT,2013	
 
The Company has given Loan or Guarantee or made Investment under Section 186 as per the limits 
specified under Sec 186(2) of the Companies Act 2013. 

	
RELATED	PARTY	TRNSACTIONS	
 
All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary 
course of Company’s business and on arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant related 
party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other 
designated persons which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
However the related party transactions are given in Annexure‐A.	
	
SHARE	CAPITAL	

 
A. Increase	in	Authorised	Share	Capital	and	Preferential	Allotment	of	Shares	

 
                      During the year under review, there is no change in Authorised Capital of the Company.  
 
 

B. Issue	of	equity	shares	with	differential	rights	
 

Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights so no disclosure is required 
as per rule 4 (4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 
 

C. Issue	of	sweat	equity	shares	
 
Company has not issued sweat equity shares, so no disclosure is required as per rule 8(13) of 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 
D. Issue	of	employee	stock	options	

 
Company has not issued employee stock options, so no disclosure is required as per rule 12(9) of 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 
 

E. Provision	of	money	by	Company	for	purchase	of	its	own	share	by	employees	or	by	trustee	
for	the	benefit	of	employees	

	
The Company has not made any provision for purchase of its own share by employees or by              
trustee for the benefit of employees so no disclosure is required as per rule 16(4) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 
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DETAILS	IN	RESPECT	OF	ADEQUACY	OF	INTERIAL	FINANCIAL	CONTROLS	WITH	REFERENCE	TO	
THE	FINANCIAL	STATEMENT	
 
The Company has adequate internal financial control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business with regards to purchase of Fixed Assets. The activities of the 
Company do not involve purchase of inventories and sale of goods and services. 

For the purposes of effective internal financial control, the Company has adopted various procedures for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
 
To ensure adequacy of internal financial controls, the procedures adopted by the Company are based on 
the following parameters: 

 
(a) Familiarity with Policies and  Procedures  –  the  related  policies  and  procedures  and  the  

changes there to ,if any ,are communicated to the employees at the time of joining and it is ensured 
that such person understands the policies or procedures correctly. 

(b) Accountability of Transactions – There is a proper delegation of authorities and responsibilities so as 
to ensure accountability of any transaction. 

(c) Accuracy & Completeness of Financial Statements/ Reports – For accuracy and completeness of 
information, reconciliation procedure and multiple checking at different level have been adopted. To 
avoid human error, computer software is extensively used. 

(d) Retention and Filing of Base Documents – All the source documents are properly filed and stored in a 
safe manner. Further, important documents, depending upon their significance are also digitized. 

(e) Segregation of Duties – It is ensured that no person handles all the aspects of a transaction. To avoid 
any conflict of interest and to ensure propriety, the duties have been distributed at different levels. 

(f)    Timeliness – It is also ensured that all the transactions are recorded and reported in a timely manner. 
 

The procedures are also reviewed by the Statutory Auditors and the Directors of the Company from 
time to time. There has also been proper reporting mechanism implemented in the organization for 
reporting any deviation from the procedures. 

 
 

TRANSFER	OF	UNCLAIMED	DIVIDEND	TO	INVESTOR	EDUCATION	AND	PROTECTION	FUND	
 
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend declared and paid in past years, the provisions of Section 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013, do not apply. 
 
 
ANNUAL	RETURN	
	
The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 as per Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013 is 
annexed as Annexure	‘C’	
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SEGMENT	
	
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Polyester Buttons which are governed by 
the same set of risks and returns and as such are in the same segment. 

 
RISK	MANAGEMENT	POLICY	

 
Company has implemented proper risk management policy including identification therein of element of 
risk. 

	
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	
 
Your Directors wish to place on record and acknowledge their appreciation for the continued support 
and co- operation received from Government agencies and the shareholders. Your Directors also record 
their appreciation for the total dedication of employees at all levels. 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors            
For   Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 06.09.2023                                                 Sd/-                                                     Sd/- 

                  Vaishali Chaudhry                                      Chaitanya Chaudhary 

                                   Director                             Director      

                          DIN: 01719640             DIN: 06813394 

      Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar          Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar 

 Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'A' 

 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 
 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis. 
 
Name (s) 
of the 
related 
party & 
nature of 
relations
hip 

Nature of 
contracts
/arrange
ments/tr
ansaction
s 

Duration 
of the 
contract
s/arrang
ements/
transacti
ons 

Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 
value, if any 

Justification 
for entering 
into such 
contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions

Date 
of 
appro
val by 
the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any 

Date on which the 
special resolution 
was passed in 
General meeting 
as required under 
first proviso to 
section 188 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
 
 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 
 
Name (s) of 
the related 
party & 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arr
angements/tr
ansactions 

Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/t
ransactions 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 
 

Date (s) of 
approval by 
the Board, if 
any 

Amount paid 
as advances, 
if any 

Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Remuneration  During the f.y. 2022-23 6,00,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Vaishali 
Chaudhry 

Remuneration During the f.y. 2022-23 2,40,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Niraj 
Chaudhry 

Remuneration During the f.y. 2022-23 1,20,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Interest Paid  During the f.y. 2022-23 2,537/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Loan Repaid  During the f.y. 2022-23 99,621/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Pickup 
Suppliers Pvt. 

Loan 
Advanced  

During the f.y. 2022-23 2,11,50,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 
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Ltd. 

Pickup 
Suppliers Pvt. 
Ltd. 

Loan 
Received Back  

During the f.y. 2022-23 40,70,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Amanat 
Builders Pvt. 
Ltd. 

Loan 
Received Back  

During the f.y. 2022-23 92,00,000/- 10.04.2022 NIL 

Himgiri 
Hotels Pvt. 
Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 6,47,357/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Habitat 
Infrastructure 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 5,16,132/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Spiderman 
Infrastructure 
Pvt. Ltd 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 23,25,300/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Carnation 
Projects Pvt. 
Ltd 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 86,217/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Lupin 
Infrastructure 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 12,80,550/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Verve 
Infraprojects 
Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 8,45,438/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

Pickup 
Suppliers Pvt. 
Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 6,92,663/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

North India 
Petrochemical
s Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 
Earned 

During the f.y. 2021-22 4,89,600/- 10.04.2022 Nil 

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     

For Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

Place: New Delhi   

Date:06.09.2023 Sd/- Sd/- 

Vaishali Chaudhry                                Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                            Director                                                Director 

         DIN: 01719640                                   DIN: 06813394 
                                      Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                                  Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,    

                            Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh                         Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'B' 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

1. OPERATING	RESULTS	OF	THECOMPANY	
	

During the Financial Year under consideration the performance of the Company was satisfactory. 
Net Profit for the year 2022-23 stood at Rs. 166.80 Lacs as against Net Profit of Rs. 75.27 Lacs in the 
year 2021-22. Furthermore the total Revenue from operation for the year ended March 31st, 2023 
stood at Rs. 627.38 Lacs as compared to Rs. 533.42 Lacs revenue for the year 2021-22. 

 

2. INDUSTRY	STRUCTURE	ANDDEVELOPMENT	
 

The principal activities of the Company are: 
 

i. The Company carries on the business of manufacturing of polyester buttons in two or four 
thread holes. Used in dresses, sweaters, pouches and shirts, these buttons can be availed in a 
variety of colors, sizes and designs. Due to their numerous advantages, these buttons are widely 
acknowledged in residential and commercial sectors. We are offering these polyester buttons to 
our clients at cost-effective prices. 

ii. The Company has enriched with vast industry experience, we are offering an exquisite range of 
Polyester Buttons. At our vendors' end, these buttons are designed using remarkable quality of 
materials that are procured from certified sources of the market. To ensure flawlessness, these 
buttons are comprehensively checked on various parameters by the team. 

 
3. THREATS	

	
I. With the increase in business segment, the competition has increased from Domestic and other 

developed countries. 
II. Threats for this Industry are very common and every person is aware of the threats and the risks 

involved with this Industry. 
 

4. PROSPECT	&OUTLOOK	
	

The Company presents the analysis of the Company for the year 2022-23 &  its outlook for the 
future. This outlook is based on assessment of the current business environment. It may vary due to 
future economic & other developments both in India and abroad. 

	

5. RISKS	ANDCONCERNS	
	

The Company has taken adequate preventive and precautionary measures to overcome all negative 
factors responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth. 
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6. INTERNAL	CONTROL	SYSTEM	AND	THEIRADEQUACY	
	

There are well-established procedures for Internal Controls for operations of the Company. The 
finance & audit functions are well equipped with professionally experienced qualified personnel & 
play important roles in implementing the statutory obligations. The Company has constituted Audit 
Committee for guidance and proper control of affairs of the Company. 

 
7. HUMANRESOURCES	

	
Human Resources are highly valued assets at Niraj Ispat Industries Limited. The Company seeks to 
attract, retain and nurture technical & managerial talent across its operations and continues to 
create, sustain the environment that brings out the best in our people with emphasis on training, 
learning & development. It aims at career progression and fulfilling satisfactory needs.  Performance 
is recognized and rewarded through up gradation & job enrichment, performance incentives. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     
For Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 06.09.2023  
                            Sd/-          

 
                       Sd/- 

      Vaishali Chaudhry                               Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                                             Director                                           Director 

              DIN: 01719640                                     DIN: 06813394 
                                                                      Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                 Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 

                                                                           Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh     Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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                                                                                                            ANNEXURE 'C' 

                         

 

                        ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
                       As on Financial Year Ended on 31

st March, 2023 
 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHERDETAILS: 

 

CIN L27106DL1985PLC021811 

Registration date 19th August, 1985 

Name of the Company Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

Category  / sub-category  of the Company Company limited by shares 

Address of the Registered office & Contact 

Details 

5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market, Gali Peti

Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar  Bazar, 

 New Delhi- 110006 

Tel: 0120-6526390,23551821 
 

Whether listed Company Yes 

Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

D153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase I, New Delhi 110020 

Phone: 011- 64732681/82 

Contact Person: Mr. Virender Kumar Rana 

Mobile No: 9818456709 
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:- 

 

S. 
N 
o. 

Name and Description of 
main products/services 

NIC Code of the 
product/service 

% to total turnover of the 
Company 

1 Manufacturing of Polyester Buttons 3699 88.77 

 

 

17 
 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY ANDASSOCIATECOMPANIES 
 

S.No Name & 
Address of the 
Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

 N.A N.A N.A. N.A N.A 

 
 
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage  of Total   Equity) 
 
 
i. Category-wise Share Holding 

Category 
of 
Sharehold
ers 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2022) 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year (31.03.2023) 

% 
Chang

e 
during
The 
year 

 Demat Physic
al 

Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 
A. Promoter          

1) Indian          
a) Individual/ 
HUF 

321100 0 321100 53.52 321100 0 321100 53.52       0

b) Central 
Govt 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State 
Govt(s) 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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d) Bodies 
Corp 

126400       0 126400 21.06    126400 0 126400 21.06 0 

e) Banks / FI 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0       0

Sub-
total(A)(1):- 

447500     0 447500 74.59 447500 0 447500 74.59 0 

2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a)NRIs- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b)Other- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies  
Corp. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Banks 
/ FI 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any  
Other…. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total 
(A)(2):- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)=(A)(1)+(
A)(2) 

447500 0 447500 74.59 447500 0 447500 74.59      0 

B. Public 
Shareholdin
g 

         

1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a) Mutual 

Funds 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central 

Govt 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State 
Govt(s) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance 
Companie
s 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

i) Others 
(specify) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
Sub-total 
(B)(1) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. Non 
Institutions 

         

a) Bodies 
Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii)Overseas 

 
12860 
 
0 

 
110 

 
0 

 
12970 
 
0 

 
2.16 

 
0 

 
12860 

 
0 

 
110 

 
0 

 
12970 

 
0 

 
2.16 
 
0 

 
     0 

 
0

b) Individuals 
(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 
lakh 

 
(ii) 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 

 
 
 
 

 37990 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36400 
 

 
 
 
 

54240 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10000 

 
 
 
 

92230 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
46400 

 
 
 
 

15.37 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
7.73 

 
 
 
 

37990 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
36400 

 
 
 
 

54240 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10000 

 
 
 
 

92230 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
46400 

 

 
 
 
 

15.37 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
7.73 

 
 
 
 

   0 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
0 

c) Others(Spe
cify) 

0 900 900 0.15 0 900 900 0.15 0 

Sub-
total(B)(2) 

87250 65250 152500 25.42 87250 65250 152500 25.42 0 

TotalPublicS
hareholding(
B)=(B)(1)+(
B)(2) 

87250 65250 152500 25.42 87250 65250 152500 25.42 0 

C. Shares 
heldbyCusto
dianforGDRs
&ADRs 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

534750 65250 600000 100.00 534750 65250 600000 100.00 0 
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ii.Shareholding of Promoter 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. 
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at 
the beginning of 
the year 

Share holding at the end of the year  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumb
er- red 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumbe 
red to 
total 
shares 

% change in 
share holding 
during the year 

 
1 

Madhu 
Chaudhry 

 
149600 

 
24.93 

 
0

 
149600

 
24.93

 
0 

 
0

 
2 

Neeraj 
Chaudhary 
HUF 

 
 

54300 

 
 

9.05 

 
 

0

 
 

54300

 
 

9.05

 
 

0 

 
 

0

 
3 

Niraj Steels 
LLP 

 
 

24600 

 
 

4.10 

 
 

0

 
 

24600

 
 

4.10

 
 

0 

 
 

0

 
4 

Pickup 
Suppliers 
Private 
Limited 

 
 
 

53900 

 
 
 

8.98 

 
 
 

0

 
 
 

53900

 
 
 

8.98

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0

5 Haryant 
Stainless 
Steels LLP 

 
 
 

47900 

 
 
 

7.98 

 
 
 

0

 
 
 

47900

 
 
 

7.98

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0

 

 
6 

Neeraj 
Chaudhry 

 
61600

 
10.27 0 61600 10.27 0 

 
0 

 
7 

Anuradha 
Kanodia 

 
20000

 
3.33 0 20000 3.33 0 

 
0 

 
8 

Vaishali 
Chaudhry 

 
30400 

 
5.07 0 30400 5.07 0 

 
0 

 
9 

Vaidehi 
Chaudhry 

 
5200 

 
0.87 0 5200 0.87 0 

 
0 
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(ii) Change In Promoter’s shareholding (please specify if there is no change) 
 

Sl. 
No 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

  No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

 At the beginning of the year 447500 74.58 447500 74.59
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Share holding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer 

/bonus/sweat 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Equity etc.     

 At the end of the Year 447500 74.58 447500 74.59 

 

(iii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 

Holders of GDRs andADRs): 

 
Sl.	
No	

Name	of	Shareholders	 Shareholding at the	
beginning	of	the	year	

Increase/ 
Decrease in  
Shareholding	

Cumulative
Shareholding	during	
the	year	

	  No. of 
shares  
at the 
beginning 

% of total 
shares of the 
Company 

No. of shares 
at the end 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

1.	 Vijay Kumar Agarwal 20000 3.33 Nil 20000 3.33

2.	 Jagmohan Nayyar 13400 2.23 Nil 13400 2.23

3.	 Karan Nayyar 13000 2.16 Nil 13000 2.16

4.	 Neeta Nayyar 5900 0.98 Nil 5900 0.98

5.	 Ravindra Kumar Garg 5000 0.83 Nil 5000 0.83

6.	 Shahab Tariq 5800 0.97 Nil 5800 0.97

7.	 Omolara Textiles Private 
Limited 

4335 0.72 1.42 12860 2.14

8.	 Ashok Kapoor 4150 0.69 Nil 4150 0.69

9.	 Mohammed Aadil 4000 0.67 Nil 4000 0.67

10.	 Laxmi Devi 4000 0.67 Nil 4000 0.67
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(iv) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Sl. 

No 

 Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 1stApril, 2022 

Shareholding at the end of 
the  year 31

st March, 2023 

 For Each of the 
Directors &KMP 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 Vaishali 

Chaudhry 

30400 5.07 30400 5.07 

2 Chaitanya 

Chaudhary 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3 Anil Kumar 

Sharma 

3000 0.5 3000 0.5 

4 Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

V INDEBTNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

(Rs. In Lakh) 
 Secured Loans 

excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning 
of the financial year 

I) Principal Amount 
II) Interest due 

but not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but not due 

 
 

      - 

 
137.31 

 
 

NIL 

 
137.31 

 
Total (I+II+III) 

 
      -  137.31 

 
NIL 137.31 

 
Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year 

 Addition 
 Reduction 

 
 
 

   - 
- 

 
 
- 

(5.21) 

 
 
 

--- 
Nil 

 
 
 

(5.21) 
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Net Change     -       (5.21) NIL (5.21) 

Indebtedness at the end of 
the financial year 

I) PrincipalAmount 
II) Interest duebut 

not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but notdue 

 
 

          - 

 
132.10 

 
 

NIL 

 
132.10 

 
Total (I+II+III) 

 
   NIL 132.10 

 
NIL 132.10 

 
 

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration to Managing 
Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

 

Sl. 
no 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount

 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) ofthe 
Income-taxAct, 
1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2)  Income-tax  Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,1961 

 

 
                      - 

NIL 

                               NIL 
 
 

 

 

 
       - 

 
               NIL 

NIL 

 Stock Option - - 
 Sweat Equity - - 
 Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify 

- - 

 Others, please specify - - 
 Total (A)  - 
 Ceiling as per the Act  - 
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A.  Remuneration  to other Directors: 

 Independent Directors 
 
·Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 
· Commission 
-  Others, please specify 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
 
 
 

                 NIL 
NIL 

 

 

B. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

  CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions containedin 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu ofsalary 

  6,00,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 

66,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 

 
1,20,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 
 

7,86,000 
 
 
NIL 
NIL 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of Directors Total amount 

 Other Non-Executive 
   Directors 

Vaishali Chaudhry Rs. 240,000 

· Fee for attendingboard             NIL NIL 

· Commission 
· Others, pleasespecify 

NIL NIL 
NIL 

·    

   
 Total (2) NIL                     Rs. 240,000 
 Total (B)=(1+2) NIL Rs. 240,000 

 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 
NIL Rs. 240,000 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL 
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3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4. Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
 
NIL 

 
NIL 

5. Others, please specify 
NIL NIL 

 
NIL NIL 

 Total 6,00,000 66,000 1,20,000 
 

7,86,000 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/  COMPOUNDING  OFOFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty/ 
punishment/compounding 
Fees imposed 

Authority 
IRD/NCLT/ 
Court 

Appeal made 
if any give 
details 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     
FOR Niraj Ispat Industries 
Limited 

 
 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 06.09.2023  
 Sd/- 

 
Sd/- 

Vaishali Chaudhry                   Chaitanya Chaudhary 
     Director                                               Director 
      DIN: 01719640                         DIN: 06813394 

     Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                        Address: KD-46, Kavi  Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh                                                 Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh      
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ANNEXURE 'D' 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO. 

The Information Under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31st, 2023 is given here below and 
forms part of the Director’s Report. 

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

(a) Measures taken: The Company is aware of the importance of conservation of energy and 
continuous efforts are being made to reduce energy cost at all levels. Special attention is being 
given for the use of energy efficient equipments. During the year the Company Replaced the regular 
fluorescent tube lights with new energy saver LED tube Lights at factory. 

(b) Additional investments and proposal for reduction of consumption of energy:  

The Company already worked on reducing carbon footprint in all its area of operation through 
initiatives like placing the solar panel 40.8 KW which generates approx. 180 units per day. The 
Management is committed to further identify new areas where the conventional equipments can 
be replaced by latest equipments so as to reduce the consumption of various sources of energy. 

(c) Impact of the measures (a) and (b):The Company has achieved reduction in energy costs. 

Total energy consumption and consumption per unit of production in prescribed Form ‘A’ is given 
below: 

FORM – A 

Power and Fuel Consumption 2022-23 

1. Electricity 
 
Total Amount (Rs. In Lakh) 

 
 
29.31 

2. Own Generation (Through Diesel Generator) 
Cost (Rs.) 

 
- 

  

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form B is given below: 
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FORM – B 

I. Research and Development (R & D) 
 

1. Specific areas: The R & D activities of the Company are aimed at quality control and 
improvement/up-gradation of the product range. 
2. Benefits derived: Improvement in product quality, development of new value added 
products and cost effectiveness. 
3. Future plan of action: Development of more value added products and making the product 
more cost effective. 
4. Expenditure on R & D: Expenditure on Research & Development are difficult to ascertain as 
the same staff and equipments are used for production and quality control. 

II. Technology Absorption, adoption and innovation: 

1. Efforts made: Sustained efforts are being made towards upgrading the process technology. 

2. Benefits derived: The Company has been able to improve the quality of its existing products 

3. Particulars of technology imported: Nil 

 

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
(a) Efforts : Various efforts are being made to explore and secure new export market for Company’s  

Products. 

(b) Earning and outgo   :   2021-22          2022-23 

i) Foreign Exchange earning   :    NIL               NIL 

ii) Foreign Exchange outgo   : NIL              NIL 

(b) Value of Imports on CIF Basis           2021-22                  2022-23 

Capital Goods (in lacs)   :                           Nil                       Nil 
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Annexure –‘F’ 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto, as amended from time to time. 
This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the 
Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

DEFINITIONS 
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services 
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;  

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:  

(i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time  

Director;  

(ii) Chief Financial Officer;  

(iii) Company Secretary; and  

(iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.  

 

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of 
management of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads.  

 

OBJECTIVE 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that  
 • the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retainand motivate 
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;  
 • relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and  
• remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involvea balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the company and its goals.  

 

Role of the Committee: 

The role of the NRC will be the following:  

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director.  

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  

• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
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Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.  

• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.  

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and SeniorManagement.  

• To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management.  

• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.  

• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.  

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced by 
any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.  

• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 
duties.  

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR 
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience 
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his 
/ her appointment, as per Company’s requirements.  
 

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience w.r.t. the position for 
which his/her appointment is considered. The Committee has authority to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the 
position.  

 

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as its Managing 
Director, Whole-time Director or Manager who has attained the age of seventy years.  

 

Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of  

seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.  

 

TERM / TENURE 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director, Whole-time Director 
or Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier 
than one year before the expiry of term.  

b) Independent Director 

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of 
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the 
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.  

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such 
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiration of three years of ceasing to 
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become an Independent Director.  

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be 
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  

 

EVALUATION 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.  

 

REMOVAL 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or 
Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and in compliance of the Companies Act, 

2013, rules and regulations made there under and the policy of the Company.  
 

RETIREMENT 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions 
of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise 
even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company in compliancewith the 
provisions of the Act. 36 

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MAN POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO 
DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

(1) Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole- Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole---
time Directors time Directors: 

(a) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time 
Directors/ Manager etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made  

there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals obtained 
from the Members of the Company. 

 

(b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the 
Board of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing 
Director/ Whole-time Directors.  

  

(2) Remuneration to Non- (2) Remuneration to Non-Executive/ Executive/ Executive/ 

Independent Directors: Independent Directors: Independent Directors:  
(a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of 
sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.  
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(b) All the remuneration of the Non- Executive/ Independent Directors (excluding remuneration 
for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be 
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 
any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be 
such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved 
by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.   

 

(c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be 
eligible to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.  

 

(d) Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive /Independent Directors for services rendered 
which are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the 
purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:  

 

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and  

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the 
practice of that profession.  

 

(3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Se (3) Remuneration to Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management: Management: 

 

(a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed 
pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

(b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time.  

 

 

 

 

(c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company 
and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided 
annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate 

 

IMPLEMENTATION 

 

The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. The 
Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 

 

47



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Niraj Chaudhry, CFO, of Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief 
hereby certify that: 

 

(a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to 
the best of my knowledge and belief: 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliancewithexistingaccountingstandards,applicablelawsandregulations 

b) There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct; 

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design and operations of such internal controls, if any, of 
which I am aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
(i) Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year under 

reference; 
(ii) Significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements ;and 
(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
FOR NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 06.09.2023 

Sd/- 
Name: Niraj Chaudhry 

Designation: CFO 
Address: KD-46, Old Kavi Nagar, 

Ghaziabad-201002, U.P. 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
The Members of 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED for 
the year ended on March 31, 2023 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was 
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company to ensure compliance with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned 
Listing Agreement. 
 
We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per 
the records maintained by the Investors Grievance Committee. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated:07/09/2023 

For V Kumar & Associates 
Company Secretary In Practice 

 
 

           Sd/- 
             (VIVEK KUMAR) 

       FCS: 8976 
          COP : 10438 

UDIN: F008976E000962225 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members, 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, 
Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-110006  
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from directors 
of NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITEDhaving CIN: L27106DL1985PLC021811 and having 
registered office at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi -
110006, (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) produced before us by the Company for the purpose 
of issuing this certificate, in accordance with regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of 
the SEBI (Listing  Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers and representation given by the 
management we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below 
for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority: 
 
Sr. No. DIN Name of Director Date of 

Appointment in 
Company 

1 00284223 RAJEEV KUMAR SINGHAL 31/03/2015 
2 01719640 VAISHALI CHAUDHRY 29/11/2001 
3 02664381 ANIL KUMAR SHARMA 15/06/2006 
4 06813394 CHAITANYA CHAUDHRY 27/02/2015 

 
 
It is solemnly the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant declarations and disclosures with 
complete and accurate information in compliance with the relevant provisions. Further, ensuring the 
eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. This  
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certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.     

 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Dated:07/09/2023 

 
 
 

For V Kumar & Associates 
Company Secretary In Practice 

 
 

                                                   Sd/- 
                                           (VIVEK KUMAR) 

                       FCS: 8976 
                                            COP : 10438 

                                                                                                                                                UDIN : F008976E000962203 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT  

 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the 
Managing Director. The Code of Conduct as adopted is available on the Company's website. I 
confirm that the Company has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, received from 
the Senior Management team of the Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of 
Compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 

 

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team means the Presidents, Sr. Vice 
Presidents and Vice President Cadre as on March 31, 2023. 

 

 

 

By Order of the Board  

      Niraj Ispat Industries   Limited  

 

Sd/- 
Chaitanya Chaudhry  

    Director 
    DIN: 06813394      

Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 

     Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh     
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ANNEXURE 'G’ 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

 
  The Members, 

Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market,  
Gali Petiwali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar,  
Delhi -110006 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of the Niraj Ispat Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2023complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2023 according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there 
 under; 
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;- Not applicable as the Company has not made any such transaction during the 
financial year under review; 

(v) ThefollowingRegulationsandGuidelinesprescribedundertheSecuritiesandExchange 
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Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBIAct’):- 
a. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(SubstantialAcquisitionofSharesandTakeovers) 

Regulations,2011;  

b. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(IssueofCapitalandDisclosureRequirements) 
Regulations,2009; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999; 

d. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(IssueandListingofDebtSecurities)Regulations, 
2008;- - Not applicable as the Company has not issued any listed debt securities during the 
period under review; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations,1993regardingtheCompaniesActanddealingwithclient; 

f. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(DelistingofEquityShares)Regulations,2009,-  
Not applicable as the Company has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from any stock 
exchange during the financial year under review; 

g. TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardofIndia(BuybackofSecurities)Regulations,1998;- Not applicable 
as the Company has not bought back/proposed to buyback any of its securities during the financial 
year under review. 

 

(v)  The other applicable laws on this Company are as follows: 
 

a. Factories Act,1948 

b. Industrial DisputeAct,1947 
c. The Payment of Wages Act,1936 
d. The Minimum Wages Act,1948 
e. Employees’ State Insurance Act,1948 
f. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965 
g. The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 
h. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition)Act,1970 
i. The Maternity Benefit Act,1961 
j. The Child Labour(Prohibition & Regulation)Act,1986 
k. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order)Act,1946 
l. The Employee Compensation Act,1923 
m. The Apprentices Act,1961 
n. Equal Remuneration Act,1976 
o. The Employment Exchange(Compulsory Notification of Vacancies)Act,1956  

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) SEBI(ListingObligationsandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,2015. 
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(iii) Equity Listing Agreement upto the extent applicable. 
 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned as abovementioned. 

 
 

We further report that: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the company got listed at National Stock Exchange of 
India. 

 

Date:-07.09.2023  
Place:-New Delhi                                                                                                 For V Kumar and  Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice 
 

                                                                                                                     Sd/- 
                                                                                                               Vivek Kumar 

                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                        FCS No: - 8976 
                                                                                                                        CP No: - 10438 

UDIN: F008976E000962271 
 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 'I' and form part 
of an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure 'I' 
 

To, 
The Members, 
Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market, GaliPetiwali 
RuiMandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi – 110006 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit. 

 

We have the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test 
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the 
accounts of the company. 

 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc 

 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

 
The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Date:-07.09.2023  
Place:-New Delhi                                                                                                 For V Kumar and  Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice 
 

                                                                                                                 Sd/- 
                                                                                                               Vivek Kumar 

                                                                                                                       FCS No: - 8976 
                                                                                                                       CP No: - 10438 

UDIN: F008976E000962271 
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INDEPENDENT AU DITORS' REPORT 

To The Members of 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Repo rt on the A udit of the Ind AS Firl'3ncia l StlltemenlS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Niraj Ispat Industries 
Limited ("lhe Company"). which comprises Ihe Balance heet as at March 31. 2023, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), tatement of Cash 
Flow and the Statement of hanges in Equity for the year Ihen ended and NOles to the 
Financial lalements inCluding a sUlllmary of significan t accounting pOlicies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of OUf information and according to the explanations given to 
us. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("' the Act"') in Ihe manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31. 2023. ils profit including other comprehensive income. its cash 
nows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis ror Opinion 

We conducted o ur audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs). 8S specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards arc funher described in the' Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the 'Code or Ethics' issued b) the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under. and we have fulfil led 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICA I's Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opin ion on the Ind AS financial statementS. 

Key Audit Maners 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31. 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a 
separDie opinion on these matters. For each mailer belo\". our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
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To The Members of 
NIRAJ ISPAT IN OUSTRI ES LIMITED 

Ileport on the Audit of the Ind AS f innnchil fatcmcnlS 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Illd AS financial SlatemcnlS of Niraj Ispat Industries 
Limited ("the Company"). which comprises the Balance heet as at March) I. 2023. the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income). Statement of Cash 
Flow and the tstemen! of hanges in Equiry for the year then ended and NOles to the 
Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of QUI' infonnation and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind A financial statements gilo-c Ihe information required by me Companies 
Acl. 2013 ("the Ace) in Ihe manner so required and give a Irue nnd fair view in conformi ty 
wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 3 I. 2023. its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash 
nows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

lJasis ror Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial stalcmenlS in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs). 8 specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards nrc runher described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audil of the 
Ind AS Financial Sl3temems' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance \\oith tht! 'Code or Ethics' issued b) the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India togclher with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
stalemel1lS under the provisions of the Act and lhe Rules ther!! under. and we have fulfil led 
aUf other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICA l's Code 
ofElhics. We believe Ihat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on Ihe Ind AS financial slatemems. 

Key Aud it MaHe~ 

Key audit matters nre mose matters that in our professional judgment. were of most 
significance in our audit of !ht! Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31. 2023. These maners were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS 
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addressed Ihe mailer is provided in that context. 
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We have dctemlined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 10 be 
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's 
responsibilities for the audit of the lnd A financial statements section of our report. 
including in relation to these maners. According!). our audit included the pcrionnance of 
procedures designed 10 respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Ind A finnncial statements. The result s of our audit procedures. including the procedures 
performed to address the maners be low, provide the basis for our audit opinion on lhe 
accompanying lnd AS financia l SUlIcmcnts. 

1. Prollerry. Plant & Equil)m ~nl and Capital Work in progress 

Valuation and existence of property, plant and equipment including assessment of useful 
lives and residual value. Property. plant and equipmen t represents a significant proportion of 
the Company's asset base. The estimates and assumptions made to determine the carrying 
amounts. including whether and \\hen to capitalize or expense certain costs. and the 
determination o f depreciation charges are material to the Company's financial position and 
performance. The charges in respect of periodic depreciation are deri\ed after estimating an 
asse(s expected useful life and the expected residual \alue. Changes to assel's can)ing 
amounts. expected usefu l lives or residual value cou ld result in a material impact on the 
fi nancial statements and hence considered as key audit matter. 

How our a ud it addressed the Key Audit 1alle r 

O ur audil procedures included the follo\\ iug: 

Our audit approach consisted evaluation of design and implementation of controls. and 
testing the operating efTectiveness of the internal controls over va luation of property. plant 
and equipment and review of useful lives: Periodic physical verification of property. plant 
and equipment for adequacy and appropriateness of the accounting and disclosure by the 
Management: 

We obtained an understanding of the Company's capiUl lization policy and assessed 
for compliance with the relevant accounting standards: 

• We carried out substantive tests on random sampling for all the major additions, 
deletions to the assets by applying all the characteristics of capital expenditure. proper 
classification of the same. with reference to the company's policy and account ing 
standards: 

• We obtained an understanding on management assessment relating to progress of 
projects and their intention to bring the a~set to its intended use. 

• We obtained certificates relating to useful lives orassets where. required . 

Informat io n O ther Ih lln t he Financilll SI:ltemenls li nd Auditor 's Rel)Ort Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
infonnation comprises the information included in the Annual report. but does not include the 
Ind A financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with Ollr audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read 
the other infomlation and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or ou r knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be malc:rially misstated . If. based on the work "vc have performed. \\c concl ude 
that there is a materia l misstatement of thi s olher information: we are required to repon that 
fael. We have noth ing (0 repon in Ihis regard. 

ReSI)Ollsibili ry of Management and Those Charged wilh Governance for the Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is rc:sponsible for Ihe matlers staled in Section 134(5) of 
Ihe Companies Ac!. 20 13 ("the Act'·) \\ ith respect to Ihe prepamlion of Ihese Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial poSi tion. financial performance 
including other comprehensive Income. cash nows and changes in Ihe equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generaily accepted in India. including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
wi th the provisions of the Act for safeguarding Ihe assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies: making judgments and e5LimOles lhot are reasonable and prudent; and 
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effect ive ly for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparalion and presentation of the Ind AS financia l statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible fo r assess ing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclOSi ng. as applicable, maUers related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realislic alternative but to 
do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for oversee ing Ihe Company's financial reponing 
process. 

Auditor 's Responsibilities For T he Audit of the Ind AS Financial Sta tements 

Ollr objectives are to obtain reasonnble assurance aboul whether the Ind AS financ ial 
stalements as a whole are free from malerial misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report Ihat includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hi gh level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee Ihal an audi t conducted in accordance with SAs wi ll always 
detect a materia I misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, the) cou ld reasonably be expected 
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Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and we 
do nOI express any foml of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our respOnsibility is to read 
the other information and. in dOing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent \\ iIh the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othcn.yise 
appears La be materially misstated. If. based on the work '\>c have performed .... 'c conclude 
Ihallhere is a maleriaimissI8tCIllCIlI of thi s olher infomlation; we are required 10 report that 
facio We have nothing to report in Ihis regard. 

Responsibili ty of Management and Those Charged with Gove rnance for the Ind A 
Financial Statements 

The ompany's Board of Directors is n:sponsible for the matters stated in Section I 34(5) of 
the Companies Acl. 2013 ( .. the Act'·) with resJX.--ct to the prepamtion orthese lnd A financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial poSition, financial performance 
including other comprehensive Income. cash flo" .. .!. and changes in the equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian 
Accounting Standards Clnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the ACI for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that nre reasonable and prudent; and 
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were 
operat ing effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true 
ilnd fair viey, and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maUers related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Compan)'s financial reponing 
process. 

Audit'or 's Responsibililies For T he Audit of the Ind AS Financial Sta tements 

Our objectives are to obtuin reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financ ial 
statements as a \\ hole are free from material misstatement, \\ hcther due 10 fraud or error. and 
to issue an auditor's report thnt includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, the) could reasonably be expected 
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10 influence Ihe economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance .... ith SAs. \\-e exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughoullhe audit. We also: 

• Ide ntify and assess [he risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements. "hether duc to fraud or error. design and perfonn audit procedures 
n:sponshe to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detccting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve 
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misreprescntations. or the override of 
internal con trol. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are approprinte in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, \"'e are also responsible for e'pressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
efTecti ... eness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and. based on the audit e\ idence obtained. whether a material uncenainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncenainty exists. we nre required to draw attention in ou r auditor's repon to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to 
modif)' our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of ou r auditor's report. lIo"e\ler. future e\lents or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to cOnlinue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 
statements. including the disclosures. and whether the Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and e\rents in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate \\ ith those charged with go .... ernance regarding. among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant aud it findings. including any significant 
defic iencies in internal controlthnt we identif)< during our audit. 

We also provide those charged \, ilh gO\'ernance "ith a statement that "c have complied with 
relc,am ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate \\ith them all 
rcl mionships and other matters that may reasonabl) be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable. rela ted safeguards. 
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to innuence Ihe economic decisions of users taken on Ihe basis of these Ind A financial 
SUHemenLS. 

As pan of an audit in accordance with As. we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
profC)sional ~keplicism throughout the audit. We aJso: 

• Identify Clnd assess Ihc risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements. whether duc to froud or error. design and perform audit procedures 
responshc to those risks. and obulin audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher Ihan for onc resulting from error. as fraud may involve 
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrcprc..-senl<tlions. or the override of 
inlemnl control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, "'e are also responsible for e:'l.pressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate intemal financial controls s),slem in place and the operating 
efTccth·eness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management' 5 use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and. based on the audit c\'idencc obtained. whether Il material uncenainl)' 
exisrs related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue 8S 8 going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainlY exists. \\e arc required to drs\\ attention in our auditor's report 10 the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or. if ~uch disclosures arc inadequate. to 
modif) our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up [0 

the date of our auditor's report. Ilov.ever, future c\-ents or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to cOnlinue 3S a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind A financial 
statements. including the disclosures, and whether the Ind A financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and c\ems in a manner that achieves rair 
presenuuion. 

We communicate \\ ith those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the 
planned scope and timing or the audit and significant audit findings, including any Significant 
deficiencies in internal cOnttOllh81 we identif), during ur audit. 

We also provide those charged \\ ith gQ\e.rnnnce \\ uh 8 statement that \\c have complied with 
relevant elhiC41 requirements regarding independence. and to communicate \\ith them all 
relationships and other matters thai may rco.!JOnabl) be thought 10 bear on our independence. 
and where applicable. related sareguards. 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

From the malter.; communicated with those charged \\ilh governance. \\'c determine those 
maHers that "ere ormosl significance in the audit oflhe Ind AS financial statements for the 
financial year ended March 31. 2023 and are therefore the key audit maners. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's repon unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
aboullhe maner or \\hen. in extremely rare circumSlllnces. \\c detennine that a matter should 

not be communic8lcd in our repon because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be c'Cpccted 10 outweigh the public imerest benefits f such communication. 

RCI)() rl on Other Lega l a nd Regula tory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Cenlral Go\,cmment of India in tenns of sub-section (II) of section 143 of the Act. 
and on the basis of such checks of the boolr..s and record of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the infonnation and explanations gi ... en to us, 
\."e give in . Anne~urc A' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order. 

2. As required b)' section 143(3) Oflhc Act. \\e report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best 
of our kno\\ ledge and belief \"'ere necessaf) for the purpose of our audil. 

b. In our opinion. proper books of account 8S required b~ law have been kept by the 
Com pan} so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet. The tatement of Profit and Loss in luding Other 
Comprehensi ... e Income. the ~tatement of Cash Flo\\ and Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statemems comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. read \\-ith Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 
2023. taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the Directors is 
disqualified as on 31- March. 2023. from being appointed as a Director in lenns of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequac} of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the com pan)' and the operating efTecti\eness of such controls. refer to 
our separate report in "Annexure B" to this report. 
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From the malters communicated with lh~ chargc."d with goycmance, "'c dClenninc those 

maHers that "ere ormosl significance in the audit of the Ind A financial statements for the 
financial year ended March 31. 2023 and are therefore the key audit maners. We describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless low or regulation precludes public disclosure 

aboullhe matter or .... hen. in extremel) rare circumstances.. \\c detennine that a matter should 

nOI be communicoted in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so .... au ld 

reasonably be C'Cpetled to out\\eigh the public imerest benefits of such communication. 

Report 00 Oiher Legal and ReguhHory Rtquiremenls 

I . As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Go\cmmcnt of India in tenus of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Acl. 

and on the basis of such checks of the books and record of the Company as we 

considered appropriate and according 10 the infonnation Ilnd explanations gi"en 10 us, 
we ghe in . Annexure A' a Statement on lhe mauers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order. 

2. As required b) seclion 143(3) ofthe Act \\e repon mat: 

a. We h3\e sought and obtained allihe infonnation and explanations \\hich 10 the best 

of our knowledge and belief \"ere necessary for lhe purpose of our audil. 

b. In our opinion. proper books of account 8$ required b~ law have been kept b) the 

Compan)' so farns it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance heet. The tatemcnt of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income. the statement of Cash Flo\\ and Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Repon are in agreement wilh the books of account. 

d. In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. read with Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. IlS amended. 

e, On the basis of \\ riuen representations received from the directors as on March 31. 
2023. la"-.en on record by Ihe Board of Directors. none of the Directors is 

disqualified as on 31- March. 2023, from being appointed as a Director in term of 

Seclion 164 (2) of ltle Act 

f. With respect to the adequaq of the internal financial conlrols over financial 
reponing of the: compan) and lhe operating efTecti\eness of such controls. refer to 
our sepamte report in "Annexure B" to this repon. 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in 

accordance wilh the requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act. as amended. In our 
opinion and to the best of our inlonllstion and according 10 the explanations given 

to us, the remunemlion paid b) the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 oflhe Ac!.: 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule II of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.2014. as 
amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information and accordi ng to the 

explam:uions given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in ils Ind AS financial statements. 

(i i) The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards. for material foreseeable losses. if any. on lang·tenn 

controcb including derivative cantmcts. 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amount. required to be transferred. to 
the Investor Education and Pratcction Fund by the Company 

(iv) (0) The Management has represented that. to the best of it's knowledge and 

belief. as disclosed in Note 34 to the finandal statements. no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 

or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Com pany to or in any other 

person(s) or enlily(ies). including foreign entities C' lntennediaries"), with the 

understanding. whether recorded in writ ing or otherwise, that the lntennediary 

shall. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("'Ultimate 

Beneficiaries"') or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management has represented, that. to lhe best of it's knowledge and 

belief. as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persan(s) or entity(ies). including foreign 

entities ("Funding Parties"). with the understanding, whether recorded in 

\\I"riting or otherwise. that the Company shal l. directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whacsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding I'arry ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 

guarantee.., security or the like on behalf of the Ultimme Beneficiaries. 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in 
accordance \",ilh the requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act. as amended. In our 
opinion and 10 the best of our inlom18lion and according to the explanations given 
to us, the remuneration paid b) the Company to its directors during Ihe year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 orlhe Act.: 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in 
accord3nce with Rule II of the Companies (Audi t and Auditors) Rules.2014. as 
amended. in our opinion and 10 lhe best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
(i) The Company has disclosed Ihe impact of pending litigations on ils financial 

position in its lnd AS linancial statements. 

(i i) The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or 
accounting standards. for material foreseeable losses. if an), on long·tenn 
contrac ts including derivati ... e Contracts. 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amount. required to be transferred. to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund b) the Company 

(iv) (0) The Management has represented that. to the best of it's knowledge and 
belief. as disclosed in Note 34 to the linancial statements. no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or i""esled (either from borrm ... ed funds or share premium 
or any olher sources r kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or enli l)'{ies). including foreign en tities ("' Intennediaries"). with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intennediary 
shall. di rectly or indirec tly lend or invest in other persons or entities identi fied 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide an) guarantee. securit), or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Management ha!J represented. that, to thl! best of it's knowledge and 
belief. as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"). with the understanding. whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirec tly. lend or 
invest in other persons or cllIities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Pany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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(e) Based on the audit procedures perfomled thai have been considered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. "Dlhing has come to our 
nOlice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 

(i) and (ii) of Rule I I (c). as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any 
material misstatement. 

(\I) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 for maintaining 

books of account using accounting software which has a fealUre of recording 

audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effcct from 

Apri l 1.2023. and accordingly. reporting under Rule 1 I (g) of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 is not app licable for the financial year ended 

March 31. 2023. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 26'" May 2023 

For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOC IATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. No. 007171C 

~~ 
(Sum it Gupta) 

Partner 
M.NO.423453 

UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 
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(c) Based on the audit procedures perfonncd thai have been considered 

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. nOlhing has come to our 
not ice that has caused us to bclic ... e thai the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule I I (e). as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any 

l1ulterinl misstatement. 

(v) Prov iso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accoums) Rules. 201~ for maintaining 
books of account using accounting software ""h ich has a feature of recording 

audit troil (edit log) fac ility is applicable to the:: Company \'I ilh elTecl from 
April r. 2023. and accordingly. reporting under Rule 11 (g) of Companies 
(A udit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 is nol applicable for the financial year ended 

March 31. 2023. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date : 26'" May 2023 

For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCI TES 
Chartered Accountants 

Fiml Reg. No. 007171 C 

~~ 
(Sumil Gupta) 

Partner 
M.NO.423453 

UDI N 234234S3BGWJJT6889 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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A NEXURE ' 8 ' TO TH E I DEPENDENT AUD ITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to pDfograph 2(f) under 'Repon 011 Other Legal and Regulotory Requiremerlls' 
sect ion of our report of even date) 

Report on the Inlernal Fina ncial Cont rol Ovcr Financial Repo rting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-scerion 3 of Sec lion 143 of the Companies act, 2013 e lhe Act ') 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Niraj Ispat 
Industries Limited ("the Com pan) ") as on March 31. 2023 in conjunction with ou r audit of 
the Ind AS financial statements orlhe company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's RCSI)()nsibility for Interna l Financial Conlrols 

The Company's management is responsible ror establ ishing and maintaining in ternal 
fi nancial controls based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria estab lished 
by the company considering essential components of inlemal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit or Intemal Financia l Controls over Financia l Reponing issued by the Inst itute 
of Chane red Accoumants of India (the 'Guidance Note'). These responsibilities include the 
design. implementation and maintenance of adequ:ue internal financial con trols that were 
operating effective ly for ensuring the orderly and efficiem conduct of its business. including 
adherence to company ' s policies, the safeguarding of its asset, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the nccouming records. and the time ly 
preparation of the re liable fi nancial information, as required under the Companies Act. 20 13 . 

Auditor's Respo nsibility 

Our responsibilit) is [0 express an opinion on the Company's interna l financial controls over 
financial reporting \~ith reference to these financia l statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of inlemal Financia l 
Controls Over Financial Reponing (thi! "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Aud iting as 
specified under section 143( i 0) of the Companies Act 2013. to the extent applicable 10 an 
audi t ofintemal financial controls and. both issued by the Insti tute or Chartered Accoun tants 
or India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with eth ical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obta in reasonable assurance about whet her 
adeq uate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these fi nancial 
statements "as established and maintained and if such controls operated effective ly in all 
material respects. 

Our aud it involves perrorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
interna l linnncial control system over financia l report ing and their operating effecti veness. 
Our audit of interna l financial controls over financial repon ing inc luded obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financ ial reporting. assessing lhe risk that a 
materia l weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
inte rna l control bascd on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgmenl. inc luding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements. \\ helher due to rraud or error. 
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A NEXURE '8' TO THE I DEPENDENT A DITORS' REPORT 

(Referred 10 pnrngraph 2(f) under °Repur1 011 Other Legal and Regulutory Requirements' 
section or our report of even dOle) 

Report all the Internal Fina ncial Control Over Fi nancial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-scelion 3 of Sec lion 143 of the Companies ncl, 2013 (' the Act ') 

We hnve audited the internal financial controls over financial reponing of iraj Ispat 
Industries Limited ("I he Company") as on March 31. 2023 in conjunction with OU f aud it of 
the Ind AS financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management 's Reslwnsibility for Internal Finandal Conlrols 

The Company's management is responsib le for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal controls over financial reponing crheria established 
b) the company considering essential components of imernal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chane red Accountants of Indin (the -Guidance Note'). These responsibilities include the 
design. implementation and maintenance of adcquUle internal financial controls that ,..,ere 
operating efTectivelY for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including 
adherence to company's pol icies. the safeguarding of its asscL. the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compleIeness of the accouming records, and the timely 
preparation of the reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 20 I). 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibilit) is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reponing with reference to these financial statements based on our sudi t. We 
conducted our audi t in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. to the extent applicable 10 an 
audi t ofintemal financial controls and, both issued by the Insti tute of Chane red Accountants 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and pcrfonn the: audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial 
statements was estnblished and maintained and if such controls operated effectivcly in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves perfomling procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthc 
internal financial control system over financial reponing and their operating efTectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reponing included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial cQntrols over financia l reponing, assessing the risk thai a 
materia l wenkness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk . The procedures selected depend on the auditor' s 
judgment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatemcnt of the financial 
statements. \\ hether due to fraud or error. 
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We belie\<e that the audit evidence \I.e ha\-e obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opi nion on the Compan)'s internal financial controls system over financial 
reponing. 

Meaning or Inlernal FinAncial Controls 0, cr Fina ncial R~porling 
A company's inlemal financial control Q\ocr financial reporting '" ilh reference to these 
financial statements is a process designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal 
purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control o\'cr financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (I) pcrtain to the maintenance of records thaI. in 
reasonable detail. accumtely and fairly reneet the transactions and dispositions of the asselS 
of the compan): (2) provide reasonable assurance thai transactions arc recorded as necessary 
to penni! preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepled 
accounting principles. and that receipts and cxpendilUres of the company are being made only 
in accordance v. ith authorisations of management and directors of the com pan) : and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding pre\<enlion or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition. use. or disposilion of the compan)'s assets thai could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

inherent Limitations or Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of comrols. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detecu:d . Iso. projections of an) c\-alu3tion of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control o\lcr financial reponing with reference to these 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion. to the besl of our information and according to the explanations gi\-en 10 us. 
the Com pan) has, in all material respects. an adequate internal financia l controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as al March 31. 2023, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued b) the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 26· May 2023 

For sAI\JEEV ANAND & A SOC lATE 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 007171C 

~~ 
(Sumil Gupta) 

Panner 
M. ·0. 423453 

UD1N 23423453BGWJJT6889 
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We belie\-c that the audit evidence we hll\ e obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls s),stcm over financial 
reporting. 

Mea ning of Inlernal Fina ncia l Controls OHr Financia l Reportin g 
A company's inlcmal financial control over financial reporting "ilh reference to these 
financial statements is a process designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A company's internal 
finnn illl conlrol o ... er financial reporting with referen e to these financial statements includes 
those policie~ and procedures that (I) pcnain to the maintenance of records that in 
reasonable detail. accumtely and fairl), renect the tmnsactions and dispositions of the asseLS 
of the cam pan) ; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transaction arc recorded as necessary 
to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the compan) are being made ani) 
in accordance "iln aUlhorisati ns of management and direclors of the com pan) : and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition. use. or disposition of the compan)"s assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

lnherent Limitations of Internal Fina ncia l Cont rols over Fimtncial Report ing 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls O\'(r financial reporting ~\ ith 
reference to these financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls. material mis tatements due to error or fraud rna) occur and 
not be detected. Iso. projections of an) e\aluation of the internal financial controls o\er 
financial reportmg with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reponing with reference to these 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deleriomtc. 

Opinion 
In our opinion. to the beSt of our infonnation and tlCcording to the explanations gi~en to us. 
the Compan) has. in all material respects, an adequate internal tinancial controls system over 
financial reporting and such intenwl financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effecth·el) as :ll March 31. 2023, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established b) the Compan)' considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance ote issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
oflndia. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date : 26'" May 2023 

For A'JEEV ANAND&AS OCIATES 
hartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. No. 007171 C 

~~ 
( umil Gupta) 

Partner 
M. '0 . 423453 

UD1N 23423.S3BGWJJT6889 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE IND EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Refe rred to in paragraph I under' Report on Other Legal and Requirement' section of our 
report of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the exp lanations provided 10 us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit. we state that: 

I. (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including 
quantitative details and silUation of property, plan t & equipment. capital work-in­
progress. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme for physical verilication in phased periodic 
manner. v .. hieh. in OUr opinion is reasonable having regard to Ihe size of the company 
and the nature of its assets. According to the infomlation and explanations given to us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information aAd explanations given to us and the record examined 
by us and based on the examination of registered sales deedJ conveyance deed I 
transfer deed provided to us. we report that the ti tle deeds. comprising all the 
immovable property of land and acquired building which are freehold. are held in the 
name of the Company as at the balance sheet. 

(d) The Company has not revalued an) of its property. plant and equipment during the 
year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending aga inst the 
Company as at March 31. 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibi tion) Act. 1988 (as amended in 2016) and ru les made 
thereunder. 

2. (a) As explained to us. the inventories ,\-ere physically verified during the year by the 
Management at reasonable intervals except for in .. entories lying with third parties 
where confirmations have been received by the management. In our opinion and based 
on information and e~planations gi .. en to us. the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the Management is appropriate having rega rd to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its operlllions. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventories \I.ere noticed on such physical verification of 
inventories I alternate procedures perfomled as applicable. when compared with the 
books of account. 

~ 
I~~ 

• 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO TIl E IND EPENDENT AUDITORS' R EPORT 

(Refe rred to in paragrnph I under' Report on Other Legal and Requirement' section of our 
report of even dUle) 

To the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of aCCQun! and records examined by us in the nonnal course of 
audit. we state that: 

I. (a) The campan) has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including 
quantitative details and silUation or property. plan t & equipment. capi tal work-in­
progress. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme for physical verilic3tion in phased period ic 
manner. whieh. in Our opinion is reasontlble having regard to the size of the company 
and Ihe nature ofilS assets. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us. 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the infonnat ion and c.xplanations given to us and the record examined 
by us and based on the examination of registered sales decdJ conveyance deed I 
transfer deed provided to us. we report that the ti tle deeds. comprising all the 
immovable property of land and acquired building wh ich are freehold. are held in the 
name of the Company as at the balance sheet. 

(d) The Company has nOI revalued an} of its propert). plant and equipment during the 
year. 

(e) 0 proceedings have been initiated during Ihe year or are pending against the 
Company as al M.trch 31. 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibi tion) Act. 1988 (as amended in 2016) and ru les made 
thereunder. 

2. (a) As explained 10 us. the inventories \\-ere physica lly verified du ring the year by the 
Management 0.1 reasonable intervals except for in\-enlories lying with third partics 
where confirnuuions have been received by the management. In our opinion and based 
on infonnation and explanations gi\cn to us. the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by lhe Management is appropriale hav ing rega rd 10 the size of the 
Company and the nature of its opemtions. No discrepancies of 10% or more in Ihe 
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of 
inventories I alternate procedures perfomlcd as applicable. when compared with the 
books of account. 
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(b) The Company has been sanctioned '\-or\"ing capital limits from banks and Onanda! 
institutions on the basis of securiry of current assets. In our opinion and according 10 

the information and explanations given to us. the quarterly returns or statements 
compris ing stock and book debt statements. filed by the Company with such banks are 
in agreement wi th the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective 
quarters. 

J. According to the infonmuion and explanation!; given to us. the company has not made an) 
investment in. provided any guarantee or securit) or granted any loans or advance in the 
nalUre ofloans. secured or unsecured 10 companies. firms, limited liability partnerships or 
any other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 

4. In OUf opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the company 
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of 
loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities. as applicable. 

5. The com pan) has not accepted an) deposits wilhin the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. 
the provisions ofclnuse 3 (v) of the order are nOI applicable to the Company. 

6. As explained to us. the Cen tral Government of India has not specified the maintenance of 
cost records under sub section (I) of section 148 of the Act for any products of the 
Company. Therefore the prov isions of cia usc 3(vi) of the order are not applicable. 

7. According to the infomlation and explanations given to us. in respecl of statutory dues: 

(i) The Company has generall) been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including providenl fund. employees' state insurance. Income tax. sales laX, goods and 
service tax. service fa)(, value added tax. dUlY of customs. duty of excise. cess and any 
other material statulo!) dues applicable to it wi lh appropriate authorities. 

(ii) There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund. employees' stale 
insurance. Income tax. sales (3)., goods and service [a.x, service lax. value added laX, 
dury of customs. dU[y of excise. cess nnd any other material statutory dues in arrears as 
at 31 st March. 2023 for n period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

8. There were no tranSllctions relating to previously unrecorded income that \/vere surrendered 
or disclosed as income in the ta).. assessments under the Income Tax Aet. 1961 (43 of 
196 r) during the year. 

9. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and e. planations given to us. the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to the banks and fina ncia l 
insti [utions. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financia l 
insti tution or government or any government authority. 
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(b) The Company has been sanctioned \\<orking capita l limits from banks and linancial 
institutions on the basis or security of current assets. In our opi nion and according 10 

the information and explanations given 10 us. the quarterly returnS or statements 
comprising stock and book debt Slatements. tiled by the Company with such banks are 
in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective 
quarters. 

3. According to the infomHuion and explanations given to us. the company has not made any 
inveSlment in, provided nny guarantee or securil) or grunted an) loans or advance in the 
nalure of loans. secured or unsecured 10 companies. firms. limited liability partnerships or 
any other parties covered in the registcr maintained under section 189 of the Act. 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the company 
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of 
loans. making investments and providing guarantees and securities. as applicable. 

5. The compan) has not accepted nn) deposits within the meaning of sec tions 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of deposits) Rules. 2014 (as amended). Accordingly. 
the provisions ofc1ause 3 (v) of the order arc not applicable to the Company. 

6. As explained to us. the Central Government of India has nOt speCi fied the maintenance of 
cost records under sub secti on (I) of seclion 148 of lhe ACI for any products of the 
Company. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(vi) or the order are nOl applicable. 

7. According to the infom131ion and explanations given to us. in respect of statutory dues: 

(i) The Company has generall) been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund. employees' Slale insurance. Income tax. sales tax, goods and 
service lax. service tax, value added laX. duty of customs. duty of excise. cess and any 
other malerial statutory dues applicable 10 it with appropriate authorilies. 

(ii) There are no undispuled amounts payable in respect of provident fund. employees' stale 
insurance. Income 13X. sales (3)., goods and service tn.'\':. serv ice ta.x, value added tax. 
duty of customs. duty of excise. cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears as 
31 31 st Morch. 2023 for n period of more than six months from Ihe date they became 
payable. 

8. There were no transaclions relating to previously unrecorded income thai Yvere surrendered 
or disclosed as in orne in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 
1961) during the yenr. 

9. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and t:xplnnalions given 10 us. the 
company has not defaulted in repaymcllI of loans or borrowings to the banks and financial 
institutions. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority . 

. '~ '!:d , -
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(e) To the best of our Io:no" ledge and belief. in our opinion. tcnn loans availed by the 
ampa"y ""cre. applied by the Campan) during the )ear for the purposes for which the 

loans were obtained 

(d) On an merall examination of the financial statements of the Company. funds raised on 
shon-tenn basis have. prima facie. nOI been used during the )e8r for long-renn purposes 
by the Cam pan) . 

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. the Company 
has not taken any funds from any entil} or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries. an associate or a joint venture 

(f) The Ccmpan) has not raised loans during the )ear on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries or joint \coture or associate companies. 

10. (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public ofTer or further public 
ofTer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(xXa) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) The Com pan) has nOI made private placement of shares during the year and hence 
reporting under clause 3(;..)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

II (a) According to the infonnation and explanations given to us. no material fraud by the 
company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit. 

(b) To the best of our kno\\ledge. no repon under sub·section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Fonn ADT 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 \\ ilh the Central Government. during the )ear and uplO 
the date of this report. 

(c) As Auditor. \\ e did nOI receive an) \\'histle·blower complain! during the lear. 

12. In our opinion. the Company is not a nidhi compan). Therefore. the provisions of clause 
3(xii) of the order are not applicable 

13. According to the information and explanations ghen to us. the transactions with the 
re lated parties are in compliance \\ ith Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act 2013 
where applicable and details havc becn disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial 
statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

1-'. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business 

(b) We have considered. the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year 
and co-..ering the period upto March 2023. 
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ec) To the best of our kno\\ ledge and belief. in our opinion. tenn loans availed by the 
ompany were. applied by the Company during the }ear for the purposes for which the 

loans were obtained 

(d) On an o\oeroll examination ofthr: financial statements of the Company. funds raised on 
short-tenn basi!i have. prima facie. not been used during the!' )e8f for long-lenn purposes 
by Ihe Compan). 

ee) On an merall examination of the financial statements of the Company. the Company 
has not taken any funds from an) entity or person on accounl of or to meet the obligl1tions 
of its subsidiaries. an associ:lle or a joint vcnture 

Cf) The Compan) has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in ils 
subsidiaries or joint \cnlure or associate!' companies. 

10. (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public afTer or further public 
offer (including debt inStrumenlS) during the )ear and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) The Company has nOt made private placement of shares during Ihe year and hence 
reponing under clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable. 

II (a) According to the infonn81ion and explanations given to us. no materia] fraud by the 
company or on the company b) its officers or employees has been noticed or reponed 
during Ihe course of our Budit. 

(b) To the best of our kno\\ ledge. no report under sub·section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companie~ Act has been filed in Form ADT 4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 "j1h the Centml Gmernmenl. during the year and upto 
the dale of this report. 

(c) As Auditor. \\C did not recei\'~ an) whistle-blower complaint during the lear. 

12. In our opinion. the Compan} is not a nidhi company. Therefore. the provisions of clause 
3(xii) of the order are nOI applicable 

13. According 10 lhe infonnalion and e\planations gi"en to us. the transactions with Ihe 
related parties are in compliance \\ith Section 177 and 188 oflhe Companies Act 2013 
where Ilppli able and details have been disclosed in the nOle:, to the standalone financial 
statements. as required b) the applicable accounting standards. 

14. (8) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit s),slem commensurate with 
the size and the nmure ofits busincs 

(b) We hone considered. the internal audit rcpons issued to the Company during the year 
and eo\o~ring the period upto March 2023. 
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15. According the infonnation and explanation given to us, the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transaction with the director or persons connected with his as referred to in 
section 192 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

16. (a) In our opinion. the Company is nOI required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank orlndia Act, 1934 
(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities during the )'car 
(e) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by Reserve Bank of India 
(d) As per the infonnation and explanation received. the group does not have any cle as 
pan of the group. 

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial )car 

18. There has been no resignation oflhe statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realization of financia l 
assets and pa)'mem of financial liabilities. other infomlation accompanying the financia l 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our anention. which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 8S on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabi lities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when the)' fall due \\ ithin a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We. ho\\ever. state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Compan). We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date orthe audit report and \\e neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get 
discharged by the Company as and \\-hcn lhey fall due. 

20. There is nOlliability of the company under the provision of section 135 oflhe Companies 
Ac!. relating to Corporate Social Responsibilit). Thercfore the Provision of Clause (xx) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

21. The Company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore, the company 
does not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of 
Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 26· May 2023 

For ANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. No. 00717 1C 

~~ 
(Sum it Gupta) 

Partner 
M.NO. 423453 

UDI 23423453BGWJJT6889 
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15. According the information and e'planation given to us. the company has nOi entered into 
any non-cash transaction with the director or persons connected with his as referred to in 
section 192 of the Companies Acl. 2013. 

16. (a) In our opinion. the Company is nol required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
the Resene Bank of India Act, 193-1 
(b) The Company has not conducted an} Non-Banking Financial or Housing Fi nance 
activities during the )ear 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by Reserve Bank of India 
(d) As per the infonnation and e:\planation received. the group does not have any CIC as 
part of the group. 

17. TIle Company has not incurred en h losses during the financial year covered by ou r audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year 

18. 'T1lere has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

19. On the basis of the financial mtios. ageing and expected dates of realization ornnancial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities. other infomlalion accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our anention. which causes us to believe that any material uncenainty exists as on the 
date of the audit repon indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due \\ ithin a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that thi s is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Compan). We further state that our reporting is based on the faclS 
up to the date Of lhc audit report and \\e neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get 
discharged by the Company as nnd \\ hen they fall due. 

20. There is not liabilil) of the cornpnn). under the provision of section 135 of the Companies 
Act, relating to Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore the Provision of Cia usc: (xx) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

21. The Compan) has not made investmentS in subSidiary company. Therefore, the compan) 
does not require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of 
Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the order art not applicable to Ihe Company. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Dale : 26· May 2023 

For ANJEEV ANAND & ASSOC IATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. 0.OO7 171 C 

~~ 
(Sum it Gupta) 

Partner 
M.NO. ~2J45J 

UDI 23423453BGWJJT6889 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3151 MARCH 2023 
I PARTICULARS 

ASSETS 
(1) Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
FinancIal assets 

Investment 
Other non-current assets 

Total- Non current assets 
(2) Current assets 

Inventories 
Financial Assets 

Trade receiva bles 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other balances with banks 

Other current assets 

Total - Current assets 

TOTAL - ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
(3) Equity 

Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Total - Equity 
(4) Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 

Provisions 
Deffered tax liabilities (net) 

Total - Non current liabilities 
IS) Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 

Provisions 
Other current liabilities 

Total- Current liabilities 

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES seiac - anymg notes to the FinancIal Statements 
0u f'.s per our report of even date attached 

• For SANJEEV ANAND ~ ASSOCIATES 
• .,. Chartered Accountants 

~ Finn Regn No. 007171C 

CJ. ;£JJ.-
Place:-Ghaziabad --(sumit Gup'i" 
Daled: 26.05.2023 FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

Note 
No. 

1 

2 
3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 

11 

12 
13 
14 
15 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

fRs. in Lakhl 
As at As at 

31 .03.2023 31.03.2022 

148.27 164.67 

24.46 23.19 
8.05 8.05 

180.79 195.91 

22.51 24.97 

74.46 83.29 
1.75 6.67 
- -

1.208.51 1.094.98 

1,307.23 1,209.91 

1,488.02 1,405.82 

60.00 60.00 I 
1.155.97 969.17 

1,215.97 1,049.17 

132.10 137.31 
- -

16.93 17.66 

149.02 154.96 

6.43 0.34 
96.73 160.71 
10.28 25.51 
9.58 15.13 

123.02 201 .69 

1,488.02 1,405.82 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD. 

uo,;,J 0Cv 
(Vaishall Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

(~~~udh4: ,~ 
CFO 

(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 
Director and CEO 

Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2023 
I PARTIC ULA RS 

ASSETS 
(1) Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equIpment 
Financial assets 

Investment 
Other non-current assets 

Total · Non current assets 
(2) Current assets 

Inventories 
Financial Assets 

Trade recelva bles 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other balances with banks 

Other current assets 

Total· Current assets 

TOTAL · ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
(3) Equity 

Equi1y share capital 
Other equity 

Total· Equity 
(4) Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 

Provisions 
Deffered tax liabilities (net) 

Total · Non current liabilities 
(5) Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 

Provisions 
Other current liabilities 

Total· Current liabilities 

TOTAL· EQUITY AND L IABILITIES I). anymg notes to the Fmanclal Statements 
....... ... As per our report of even date attached 

For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
.... Chartered Accountants 

~ <;. Firm Regn No. 007171 C 

, ':--' ... ;£JJ..-
Place:-Ghaziabad -(Sumn Guptt;) 
Daled: 26.05.2023 FCA 

M.No 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

Note 
No. 

1 

2 
3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 

10 

11 

12 
13 
14 
15 

SANJEEV ANANO & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

lRs. in Lakh} 
As at As at 

31 .03.2023 31 .03.2022 

148.27 164.67 

24.46 23.19 
8.05 8.05 

180.79 195.91 

22.51 24.97 

74.46 83.29 
1.75 6.67 
. . 

1,208.51 1,094.98 

1,307.23 1,209.91 

1,488.02 1,405.82 

60.00 60.00 I 
1.155.97 989.17 

1,215.97 1,049.17 

132.10 137.31 
. . 

16.93 17.66 

149.02 154.96 

6.43 0.34 
96.73 160.71 
10.28 25.51 
9.58 15.13 

123.02 201 .69 

1,488.02 1,405.82 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD. 

uo.>.J 
(Valshall Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

(~~!Udh4f , .1 
CFO 

(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 
Director and CEO 

Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 

I PARTICULARS 

I Revenue from operations 
II Other Income 
III Total income 
IV Expenses 

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed 
(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

work-in-progress and Stock-In-trade 
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses 
(d) Finance Cost 
(e) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 
(f) Other Expenses 
Total expenses 

V Profit before exceptional item & tax (III - IV) 
VI Exceptional Items 
VII Profit/(Ioss) before tax (V-VI) 
VIII Tax Expenses 
Income tax for previous year 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

IX Profit for the years (VII-VIII) 

X Other Comprehensive Income for the period 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 

B (I) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified 

to profit or loss 
Total Other Comprehaensive Income 

XI Total Comprehensive income for the year 
XII Earnings per share 

Basic and Di1uted 
XIII Notes forming part of financial statement 
S - ~Ying notes to the Financial Statements 
ri"'~~J...r. As per our report of ellen date attached 
'~f;~% For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
~ Chartered Accountants 

'l; F-'" Finn Regn. No. 007171C 

5~r 
Place: Ghaziabad 
Daled: 26.05.2023 

(Sum~ Gupta) 
FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

Note 
No. 

16 
17 

18 

19 
20 
21 
1 

22 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

fRs. in Lakh) 

Year ended on Year ended on I 
31.03.2023 31 .03.2022 

556.94 487.36 
70.44 46.06 

627.38 533.42 

272.91 289.23 

3.44 2.96 
31.41 28.51 

1.25 6.08 
16.81 16.94 
78.80 88.92 

404.61 432.63 

222.77 100.79 

222.77 100.79 

0.22 0.24 
56.48 25.51 
(0 .73) (0.23)1 

166.80 75.27 

166.80 75.27 

27.80 12.54 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD. 

\Jo..:.j 
(Vaishall Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

(~~~Udh4) ;; -
CFO 

(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 
Director and CEO 

Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 

I PARTICULARS 

I Revenue from operations 
II Other Income 
III Total Income 
IV Expenses 

(a) Cost of raw materials consumed 
(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

work·in-progress and Stock-in-trade 
(e) Employee Benefit Expenses 
(d) Finance Cost 
(e) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 
(f) Other Expenses 
Total expenses 

V Profit before exceptional Item & tax (III - IV) 
VI Exceptional Items 
VII Profit/(Ioss) before tax (V-VI) 
VIII Tax Expenses 
Income tax for previous year 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

IX Profit for the years (VII-VIII) 

X Other Comprehensive Income for the period 
A (I) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income tax relating to Ilems that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(li) Income lax relating to items thai win be reclassified 

to profit or loss 
Total Other Comprehaensive Income 

XI Total Comprehensive income for the year 
Xli Earnings per share 

Basic and Diluted 
XIII Notes forming part of financial statement 
S panying notes to the Financial Statements 
:;;~7ift..f.iJ'.r. As per our report of even dale attached .p For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
~ Chartered Accountants 

'l; F-'" Firm Regn. No. 007171C 

'1A .~ 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Dated: 26.05.2023 

5~~ 
(Sumit Gupta) 
FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Note Year ended on Year ended on I 
No. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

16 556.94 487.36 
17 70.44 46.06 

627.38 533.42 

18 272.91 289.23 

19 3.44 2.96 
20 31.41 28.51 
21 1.25 6.08 
1 16.81 16.94 

22 78.80 88.92 
404.61 432.63 

222.77 100.79 

222.77 100.79 

0.22 0.24 
56.48 25.51 
(0.73) (0.23)1 

166.80 75.27 

166.80 75.27 

27.80 12.54 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES L TO. 

~ 
(Vaishati Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

~I ':~ 
(N~haudhry) 

CFO 

(Challanya Chaudhry) 
Director and CEO 

Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

MIS NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES L TO 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 eRs. in Lakh) 

PARTICULARS 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax and extraordinary items 
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation 
Finance Cost 
Other Income from Investments 
Provo for change in Fair value of Shares 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Adjustments for : 
Trade & Other Receivables 
Inventories 

Trade & Other Payables 
Cash generated from operations 
Direct Taxes 
Previous Year Adjustment 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Sale of fixed assets 
Other Income from Investments 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Unsecured Loans 
Proceeds from borrowing from working capital 
Proceeds from borrowing from term loans 
Increase I{Decrease) in Investments 
Interest paid 
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 

Note:-

31,03,2023 31,03,2022 

222,77 100,79 

16,81 16.94 
1.25 6.08 

(69.17) (46.06) 
(1 .27) 

170.38 77.75 

(104.70) (11 .78) 
2.46 (0.74) 

(84.75) 83.06 
(16.61) 148.29 
(56.48) (25.51) 

(0.22) (0.24) 
(73.31) 122.54 

(0.41) (1.57) 

69.17 46.06 
68.76 44.49 

(5.21) (170.04) 
6.09 0.34 

(1.25) (6.08) 
(0.37) (175.78) 
(4.92) (8.76) 
6.67 15.42 
1.75 6.67 

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS-7 
2. Figures in bracket indicate Cash Outflow 

~ s per our report of even date attached t ~'#~ For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
{\ ..... Chartered Accountants 

C Firm Regn. No. 007171C 

~1~1I 'i'~{ ~~..v 
Place: Ghaziabad (Sumi! Gupta) 
Daled: 26.05.2023 FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD. 

UhJ 
(Vaishali Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

0Cv 
(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 

Director and CEO 
Din 06813394 

(Shad man Khan) 
Company Secretary 
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MIS NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 fRs. In Lakh) 

PARTICULARS 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax and extraordinary items 
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation 
Finance Cost 
Other Income from Investments 
Provo for change in Fair value of Shares 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Adlustments for : 
Trade & Other Receivables 
Inventories 

Trade & Other Payables 
Cash generated from operations 
Direct Taxes 
Previous Year Adjustment 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENTS ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Sale of fixed assets 
Other Income from Investments 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Unsecured Loans 
Proceeds from borrowing from working capital 
Proceeds from borrowing from term loans 
Increase /(Decrease) In Investments 
Interest paid 
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 
Net change In cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 

Note:-

31,03,2023 31,03,2022 

222,77 100.79 

16.81 16.94 
1.25 6.08 

(69.17) (46.06) 
(1 .27) 

170.38 77.75 

(104.70) (1 1.78) 
2.46 (0 .74) 

(84.75) 83.06 
(16.61) 148.29 
(56.48) (25.51) 

(0.22) (0.24) 
(73.31) 122.54 

(0.41 ) (1.57) 

69.17 46.06 
68.76 44.49 

(5.21) (170.04) 
6.09 0.34 

(1.25) (6.08) 
(0.37) (175.78) 
(4.92) (8.76) 
6.67 15.42 
1.75 6.67 

1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ~ Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS-7 
2. Figures in bracket indicate Cash Outflow 

~ s per our report of even date attached 
/;. ' . For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
II ..... Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 007171C 

""~ , ~-+.h---
Place: Ghaziabad (Sumit Gupta) 
Daled: 26.05.2023 FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INOUSTRIES LTD. 

ili,;J 
(Vaishali Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

00v 
(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 

Director and CEO 
Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Rs. in lakhl 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of Amount 

As atApril1, 2021 
Issued during the year 

As at March, 31 2022 
Issued during the year 

As at March. 31 2023 

B. Other Equity 

As at April 1, 2021 
Profit for the year 
Transfer within equity 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprensive income 
-Final dividend on equity Shares 
-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares 

As at March 31, 2022 

Profit for the year 
Transfer within equity 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprensive income 
-Final dividend on equity Shares 
-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares 

As at March 31, 2023 

lf~ ~., "_rt of even date attached ,iJ. _ For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
I " Chartered Accountants 

• Finn Regn. No. 007171C 

~71r.~"\\ ~ 

Place: Ghaziabad (Sumit G~ 
Dated: 26.05.2023 FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

Shares 
6.00 60.00 
· · 

6.00 60.00 

· · 

6.00 60.00 

General Retained 
Total 

Reserve Earnings 

138.83 775.07 913.90 

· 75.27 75.27 
15.00 (15.00) . 

· · · 
15.00 60.27 75.27 

· · · 
· · · 

153.83 835.33 989.17 

· 166.80 166.80 
15.00 (15.00) · 

· · · 

15.00 151.80 166.80 
· · · 
· · · 

168.83 987.14 1,155.97 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD. 

~ 
(Vaishall Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

~L:o, ,J, 
(N];jChaudhry) 

CFO 

, -

0~ 
(Chailanya Chaudhry) 

Director and CEO 
Din 06813394 

(Shad man Khan) 
Company Secretary 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

(Rs. in Lakhl 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each Issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of Amount 

As at April 1, 2021 
Issued during the year 

As at March, 31 2022 
Issued during the year 

As at March. 31 2023 

B. Other Equity 

As at April 1. 2021 
Profit for the year 
Transfer within equity 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprensive income 
-Final dividend on equity Shares 
-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares 

As at March 31 , 2022 

Profit for the year 
Transfer within equity 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprensive income 
-Final dividend on equity Shares 
-Tax on Final dividend on equity Shares 

As at March 31. 2023 

t~-'" .5:' As per our report of even date attached 
I ~I ~ . - For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

G Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn No 007171C 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Dated: 26.05.2023 

~r 
(Sum!t Gupta) 
FCA 

M.No. 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

Shares 
6 .00 60.00 

- -
6.00 60.00 

- -
6.00 60.00 

General Retained 
Total 

Reserve Earnings 

138.83 775.07 913.90 

- 75.27 75.27 
15.00 (15.00) -

- - -
15.00 60.27 75.27 

- - -
- - -

153.83 835.33 989.17 

- 166.80 166.80 
15.00 (15.00) -

- . -
15.00 151.80 166.80 

- - -
- - -

168.83 987.14 1,155.97 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES lTD. 

~ 
(Vaishalf Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

kL:u . jI 
(Nrr;jChaUdhry) ,. 

eFO 

c0~ 
(Chaltanya Chaudhry) 

Director and CEO 
Din 06813384 

(Shadman Khan) 
Company Secretary 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

Notes on Financial StalementfOllhe year ended 31st March, 2023 Nlrajlspot Induslrfes UmHe 1 
1. (a) Pfaptriy. Plant and equipment IR!.ln Lakhl 

Parikulan Camput" lab Equlpmtrl 
Ai WelglvVng Scale AIr DIy" Tubewell Pump GrInde< 

Pac~ng 
Mauldll Dill Tanglblll Taial (8) 

ComPl11I1)f MoeMne 
Cod/Deemed Co~ 

All ApIIl2022 0.32 0.01 0.52 0.18 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.25 0.05 1.52 

Adtllionl 
Oedvcliotu 
Other odjuslmenh 

AI31 Match 2023 032 0.01 0.12 0.18 0.01 0.14 0.02 0.25 0.05 1.52 

Accumulgled delllecialion and in'9aimenf 

At I APfl2022 0.15 o.n 0.05 0.08 0.01 0.Q7 0.66 

Depreciolkin e.penses O.OS OD! OD! 0.00 0.02 0.09 
Deduchons 
Olllet Odiuslmenls 

AlII March lOll 0.15 0.34 0.07 0.09 o.ot 0.09 0.76 

Canylng yalue 

AlII March 2023 0.17 0.01 0.18 0.12 0.01 0.05 0.01 0.16 0.05 0.76 

Aill Mach 2022 0.17 0.01 0.22 0.13 0.01 0.06 OD! 0.18 O.OS 0.86 

UseIU Ule 0I1he olSen lYeas) 10 IS IS IS IS IS 15 15 

t.<eit'od 01 dep'eciohon !1M !1M !1M !1M SlM !1M SlM !1M !1M 
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Notes on Financial Sto1ementtorihe year ended 31st March, 2023 Nlrojlspollnduslrles UmHe 1 
1. (e) Proptriy, Pion! and equipment IRs, In Lakhl 

/artkulcn Computtl lob Equlpm,rI ~ WtlgMlng Scolt Ar D1ytl lubewtU lump Grindtl 
/eeijng 

Mouldl' Dill lenglbl.1 10101 (I) 
Comp/IIIOI MoeNn. 

COll/Ot,mtd COli 

All Aprtl2022 032 0,01 0,52 ~18 0,01 0,14 0,02 0,25 0,05 1,52 

Addi1ionl 
OcO.I:lioos 
Olher adjusttrenls 

Aill Meleh2023 032 0,01 0.52 ~II 0,01 0,14 0,02 ~ 0,05 1.52 

Aeeymulated cje!!!tC1cl1on and in'9aWmtn! 

All Aprtl2022 0,15 0.2? ~OS ~08 0,01 ~07 0,11 

llep'eclOtioo e.pe!1\e1 O,OS ODI 0,01 0.00 0,02 0,1)9 
0ed\,(11OnI 
Oltterodiusltrenh 

AI 31 "'oleh 2Ol3 0,15 0,)4 0.07 O,Of 0,01 O.Of 0,76 

Cgl!y!ng Volu' 

AI31 Moreh 2023 0.17 0,01 0.18 ~12 0.01 0,05 0.01 0,16 0,05 0,16 

AI31 MClfch 2012 0.17 0,01 0.22 0.13 ODI 006 om 0,18 0.05 0.86 

lIleIJ Ufe of the ouell iYeO's) 10 15 15 15 15 15 15 IS 

Mel!iOd of dep'eclOlion llM llM llM 11M 11M llM 11M SlM SlM 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

Notes on flnanclol Sialement for lhe year ended 31st March, 2023 Nlra] Ispallnduslrles UmHed 

1. (a) PrOjlff!y, P10nI and equlpmenl jRs. In Lakhl 

PcrtlcUo~ leasehold land 
Factory FlKllilure & 8tc!r1c Crone G.nttolor lyptWrlltr 

loo1s , 
PIonl and MacNnery Tanglbl.s Toiol (A) 

Buildings FilIIKe In~allollon ImpltrMnIs 
Cost}PterMd Co# 

AI T AprlI2022 til 1.55 0.14 3.32 0.00 1.&1 0.00 0.04 23'-02 24m 

Add,lOO$ 0.41 0.41 
IleOJclilns 
Olher od)ustmenls 

AI31 March 2023 lI6 1.55 0.14 3.32 0.00 1.!6 0.00 0.04 236043 245.31 

AccyrnY!O!ed iltp!ec!qlion O!ld moo,ment 

All AP<i 2022 0.90 0.01 2.61 0.94 0.02 94.53 99.13 

DepreclOhon e<penseS 0.01 0.16 0.00 16.16 16.33 
IleOJclilns 
Oth« od)uslmenls 

AI 31 March 2023 0.90 0.01 161 1.10 0.02 110.10 115,46 

CO!!'Iing Vofut 

At 31 March 2023 til 0.&1 0.0; 0.65 0.00 0.56 0.00 0.02 125.74 12'.85 

Al31 MarCh 2022 2.16 0.66 0.07 0.65 0.00 0.72 0.00 0.D2 141.49 145.17 

UselU Ute oIlhe osselslyeasl NA 1I IIJ 10 10 15 10 15 15 

Meitlod 01 dejlec'o!l()n NA SLM SlM !1M SlM !1M !1M SLM SLM 
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Noles on flnanclol Siatemeni101 the year ended 31st March, 2023 NlraJlspollnduslrles Umlled 

1. (0) rlopflly, PIon! and equlpmtI'II JRs. ln Lakhl 

PortlclAors leasehold land FoctOlY FM.l Stcfrfc C,on. G.nttotor IypeWri\t/ 100II l Planl and MocNnery longibltl 10101 (A) 
luldlngs fWIK. Inllollollon Imtll.mtnls 

Colupeemtd Co# 

All AprI12022 116 1.55 0.14 l.32 MO 1." 0,00 0.04 236.02 244.90 

Add,liooI 0.41 0.41 
De<!oc lions 
Olher ocijullmenil 

Aill MOlch 2023 116 1.55 0.14 3.32 0.00 U6 0.00 004 236.43 245.31 

AccymJ@!td d.Dltc!q!ion OIld iq!>o,mtnl 

All AprI12022 0.90 0.01 167 0.94 0.02 94.53 !I.13 

Deprecalion eqJel'lSel 0.01 0.16 0.00 16.16 16.33 
DeQJcbons 
Olher ~Ullmerlll 

AI 31 MOlch 2023 0.90 am 161 1.10 0.02 110.10 115.46 

Co!!)'!ng Value 

AI31 Mmch 2023 1I6 0.66 0.0; 0.65 0,00 0.56 0.00 0.02 125.74 129.85 

Alll Mach 2022 2.16 0.66 0.07 0.65 0.00 0.72 0.00 om 141.49 145.17 

UleiIJIlife oIlhe Ollefl (yeas) NA 1I /I) 10 10 IS 10 15 IS 

Method 01 dejJecioflOO NA 11M SlM lIM lIM lIM lIM 11M IlM 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

Noles on Flnonclol Sialemenllor Ihe year ended 31s1 March, 2023 Nlra] Ispallnduslrles limite 1 
1. (a) Prap.rty, Planland Iqulpmenl IRs. in Lakh) 

Particulars AlrCaaler V.hlcle 
Energy Conlrol Pollution Control fir. Equlpmenl Fi.dUrt & OffIce A, 

Tangibles Tolal (C) 
Grand Toiol (A + I + 

Equipment Equipment Assessorlel Eqvtpmenl Condffioner C) 

Co~IDeemed Co~ 

All Apri 2022 0.01 0.11 0.14 0.14 l.~ 71.65 0.38 l.ll as.l4 33T.65 

Addilklru 0.41 
Deduclions 
Ofher odjullmer115 

AI!1 March lOll 0.01 0.11 0.14 0.14 3.4a 78.15 0.38 l.ll as.24 33l,0I 

Accumulaled depreclgtlon and Impalrm.nt 

All A~l1022 0.01 0.07 o.n 65.81 0.16 0.41 17,18 111.98 

DeP'!C~11on e.pe!l!e\ 011 0.Q3 O.IS 0.39 16~1 

Deduclions 
Olher odlUllmerll1 

AI!1 M .. ch 2021 0.01 0.07 0.93 65.81 0.19 0.56 67.57 183.7P 

Carrying Valu. 

AI!1 March 2023 0.01 0.11 0.07 0.14 2.55 12.14 0.18 1.77 17.67 14a.27 

AI31 March lO22 0.01 0.11 0,07 0.14 2.77 12.84 0.21 1.91 18.05 16(67 

UseftJ Ule 01 lhe Olsets (yeool 15 10 15 15 10 10 15 

Meli'od 01 depreclollon SLM SlM SLM SLM SLM SLM SlM SlM 

1. Ib) Capitol Wor1< In Progr.ss 
As lher. ~ no omounl outslondmg in Copllel Wort< In ~ogr.lll .. curenl yew 01 well as lor prevloul~. lherefore, Ihe oge~ deloill 01 Copllol Wort< In progreu il nol reQuied, 

1. Ic) Dllclosur. lorlill. deedl 0/ Immo,able plop.rty h.ld by Ih. Company ,t Ailihe nile deedl 01 Immovable property ore held In the nome 01 lhe compony. 

1. (d) DllclolUio lor lenam Prop.rty held by Company 
~, . 

The compony il nol having ony Benoml Properly 01 defined ur'(ier The Benomi [ron.actlon IProM)ilkml Acl. 1988. ,/ 
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Noles on Financial Sialement lor Ihe year ended 31s1 March. 2023 Nlra] Ispot IndvslrlesllmHe I 
1, (a) Properly. Planl and tqulpment (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars AI Cooler V.hlcle 
EnrrgyControi Pollution Control FlrtEqulpmtnl FIlIu .. I OffICI AI Tangibles Tolol (C) Grand Tolal (A + B + 

Equipmenl Equipment A"tlSories Equtpmenl Condlllon .. C) 

Co~IDtemed Co~ 

All Aprl2022 0.01 0.11 0.14 0.14 3.41 7Ul 0.38 2.32 85.24 331.15 

Addilklns 0.41 
DeducIIOllS 
Olher odjuslmenll 

AI 31 March 2023 0.01 0.11 0.14 0,14 3.41 78.65 0.38 2.32 85.24 332.06 

AccY!!!lllaled deprKlgflon and Impolrmtnt 

AI I April 2022 0.01 0.D7 o.n 65.81 0.16 0.41 67.18 166,P8 

DeI18CiOIion e.<perIseI 011 0.03 0.15 0.39 16~1 

Deduclions 
Olher adJuslmenll 

AI31 Match 2023 0.01 0.D7 0.93 65.81 0,19 0,56 67.57 183,79 

Conylng Volue 

AI 31 March 2023 0.01 0.11 0.D7 0.14 2,55 12,84 0.18 1.77 17.17 141.27 

AI 31 March 2Il22 0.01 0.11 0,07 0.14 VI 12~ 021 1,91 18.05 161.67 

UseIU tHe 01 lhe oS!els (yeasl 15 10 15 15 10 10 15 

Melhod 01 depreclollon SlM SlM SLM SLM SlM SLM SlM SlM 

1. (b) Caplal Woric In hogr." 
As lhere ~ no omounl ouilionding ~ Capitol WorI< in Progress lor curenl ~eat os well os lor previous yeor Iherelore, Ihe oge~ details 01 Copllol WorI< in progen ~ nol requied 

1. (e) ~Iclosur. lor !illt deedl at Immo,oblt properly h.ld by Ihe Company , Ailihe nile deeds of ImmovotAe property ore held In the nome 01 the company. 

r~-1. (d) Disclosure lor 8enoo; Properly held by Company 
The company il nol ho~ng ony Benoml Properly 01 defined under lhe Benomi Ironsocllon IProh Oilien) Acl, 1988 ../ 



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 fRs . in lakh) 

Particulars 

2. NON CURRENT INVESTMENT 

(a) Quoted Shares 
Aggrigale Value of Investment 
Less: Prov. for fair value 

Total (a) 

(b) Quoted Debentu re & Bonds 
Aggrigate Value of Investment 
Less: Prov. for fair value 

Total (b) 

te) Unguoted Shares 
Aggrigate Value of Investment 
Less: Provo for fair value 

Total (c) 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment (at Cost) 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 
(at Cost) 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment 
(at Fair Value) 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 
(at Fair Value) 

3. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 
(Unsecured Considered good unless stated otherwise) 
Security Deposits 

TOTAL: 

4. INVENTORIES 
(As taken, valued and certified by the management) 
(At lower of cost and net realizable value unless stated olhel'Wlse) 

Raw Materials 
Finished & Semi·finished Goods 
Stores, Spares & Packing Materials 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31 .03.2023 

0.15 
0.15 

0.11 
0.11 

2.00 
(22.47) 

24.46 

0.27 
2.00 

2.26 

24.46 

24.46 

B.05 

B.05 

11 .47 
9.58 
1.46 

22.51 

As at 31 .03.2022 

0.15 
0.15 

0.01 

0.11 
0.11 

2.00 
(21.19) 

23.1B 

0.27 
2.00 

2.26 

0.01 

23.1B 

23.19 

B.05 

8.05 

9.52 
13.02 
2.43 

24.97 

77

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 fRs . in Lakh) 

Particulars 

2. NON CURRENT INVESTMENT 

(a) Quoted Shares 
Aggrigale Value of Investment 
Less: Provo for fair value 

Total (a) 

(b) Quoted Debenture & Bonds 
Aggrigate Value of Investment 
Less: Provo for fair value 

Total (b) 

te) Unguoted Shares 
Aggrigate Value of Investment 
Less: Provo for fair value 

Total (c) 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment (at Cost) 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 
(at Cost) 

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment 
(at Fair Value) 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 
(at Fair Value) 

3. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 
(Unsecured Considered good unless stated otherwise) 
Security DepOSits 

TOTAL: 

4. INVENTORIES 
(As taken, valued and certified by the management) 
(At lower of cost and net realizable value unless stated otherwtse) 

Raw Materials 
Finished & Semi·finished Goods 
Stores, Spares & Packing Materials 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31 .03.2023 

0.15 
0.15 

0.11 
0.11 

2.00 
(22.47) 

24.46 

0.27 
2.00 

2.26 

24.46 

24.46 

B.05 

B.05 

11.47 
9.5B 
1.46 

22.51 

As at 31 .03.2022 

0.15 
0.15 

0.01 

0.11 
0.'1 

2.00 
(21.19) 

23.1B 

0.27 
2.00 

2.26 

0.01 

23.1B 

23.19 

B.05 

B.05 

9.52 
13.02 
2.43 

24.97 
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IRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars 

5. TRADE RECEIVABL ES 

Unsecured and Considered good 

AQ.ei~of Trade Receivables 
f')ll tstanding for following periods from 

OIee date 

j.S than 6 months 
6 months M 1 vear 
1·2 years 
2·3 vears 
More Than 3 Years 

Total 

A. at 31 .03.2023 
Unsecured, Considered Good 
Disputed Undisputed 

- 71.80 
- 2.66 
- -
- -
- -
- 74.46 

Asal 
31.03.2023 

74.46 

74.46 

I As., 31 .03.2022 

83.29 

83.29 

As .t 31 .03.2022 
Unsecured, Considered Good 
Disputed Undisputed 

- 83.29 
- -
- -
- -
- -
- 83.29 

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential 
customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. limits and scoring attributed to customers are 
reviewed once a year. 

The Company does not hold any collateral or other aedit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a 
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty. 

9 receivables hypothecated as security against borrowings. 

1 determining the recoverability of a trade receivable. the Company considers any change in the credit quality of 
~e trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The 
.oncentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated. 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
Cash In hand 
Balances wijh banks 

In current and deposit accounts 

TOTAL; 

7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
Insecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 
,vances recoverable in cash or in kind or 

0.38 

1.37 

1.75 

1.206.48 

1.19 

0.84 

1,208.51 

0.32 

6.35 

6.67 

1.067.13 

1.59 
26.25 

1,094.98 
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IlRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 (Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars 

5. TRADE RECEIVABL ES 

Unsecured and Considered good 

A.Jll!iOiLOf Trade Receivables 
Outstanding for following periods from 

olCe dale 

.:>S than 6 months 
6 months - 1 vear 
1-2 years 
2-3 vears 
More Than 3 Years 

Total 

As 8131 .03.2023 
Unsecured, Considered Good 
Di.puled Undispuled 

- 71,80 
- 2.66 
- -
- -
- -
- 74.46 

Asal 
31.03.2023 

74.46 

74,46 

I As al 31 .03.2022 

83,29 

83,29 

As 8131 .03.2022 
Unsecured. Considered Good 
Dispuled Undispuled 

- 83.29 
- -
- -
- -
- -
- 83.29 

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential 
customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. limits and scoring attributed to customers are 
reviewed once a year. 

The Company does not hold any collateral or other aedit enhancements over these balances nor does It have 8 
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty. 

a receivables hypothecated 8S security against borrowings. 

1 determining the recoverability of a trade receivable. the Company considers any change in the credit quality of 
1e trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The 
,ncentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base Is large and unrelated. 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
Cash In hand 
BalanceS with banks 

In current and deposit accounts 

TOTAL: 

7 OTHER CURRENT A SSETS 
Insecured. considered good unless stated otherwise) 
Ivances recoverable in cash or in kind or 
value to be received 

Jher Loans and advances: 
repaid Expenses 

~Iances with statutory I government authorities t 
TOTAL: II: 

0.38 

1.37 

1.75 

1,206.48 

1.19 

0.84 

1,208.51 

0.32 

6.35 

6.67 

1.067,13 

1.59 
26.25 

1,094.98 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 (Rs. in Lakhl 

Particulars 

8. SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised Capital 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of RS.10/--each (Previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. tO/-each) 
Issued. Subscribed capita l 
6,00.000 Equity Shares of RS.lO/-each (Previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each) 
Paid -UP Capital 
6,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/--each (Previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each) 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31.03.2023 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

As at 
31 .03.2022 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The 
dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing general 
meeting. 

Details of shareholdinQ more than 5% I As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 
Name of the share holder No. of share % Held No. of shares % Held 

Smt. Madhu Chaudhary 1,49,600 24.93% 1,49,600 24.93% 
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary (HUF) 54,300 9.05% 54,300 9.05% 
MIs Pickup Suppliers (P) Ltd. 53,900 8.98% 53.900 8.98% 
Haryant Stainless Steel LLP 47,900 7.98% 47,900 7.98% 
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary 61 ,600 10.27% 61 .600 10.27% 
Smt. Vaishali Chaudhry 30,400 5.07% 30.400 5.07% 

Details of shareholdlng held by the promoter I promoter Group: 

A. on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 % change Name of the share holder No. of 
shares 

% Held No. of shares % Held during the year 

Smt. Madhu Chaudhary 1,49,600 24.93% 1,49,600 24.93% · 
Sh. Niraj Chaudhry 61 ,600 10.27% 61 ,600 10.27% · 
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary (HUF) 54,300 9.05% 54,300 9.05% · 
Smt. Vaishali Chaudhry 30.400 5.07% 30,400 5.07% · 
Smt. Anuradha Kanodia 20.000 3.33% 20,000 3.33% · 

Ms. Vaidehi Chaudhry 5.200 0.87% 5,200 0.87% · 
Mis Pickup Suppliers (P) Ltd. 53,900 8.98% 53,900 8,98% · 

Haryant Stainless Steel LLP 47.900 7.98% 47,900 7.98% · 
Niraj Steel LLP 24,600 4.10% 24,600 4.10% · 
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SANJEEV ANANO & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 (Rs. In Lakhl 

Particulars 

8. SHARE CAPITAL 
Authorised Capital 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of RS .10/-each (previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each) 
Issued. Subscribed capital 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of RS.10/-each (Previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each) 
Paid -up Capital 
6,00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each (Previous year 
6,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each) 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31.03.2023 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

As at 
31.03.2022 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

60.00 

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The 
dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in ensuing general 
meeting, 

Details of shareholdinQ more than 5% I As on 31 .03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 
Name of the share holder No. of share % Held No. of shares % Held 

Smt. Madhu Chaudhary 1,49,600 24.93% 1.49.600 24.93% 
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary (HUF) 54.300 9.05% 54,300 9.05% 
MIs Pickup Suppliers (P) Ltd. 53,900 8.98% 53.900 6.96% 
Haryant Stainless Steel LLP 47,900 7.96% 47,900 7.96% 
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary 61.600 10.27% 61 ,600 10.27% 
Sm!. Vaishali Chaudhry 30.400 5.07% 30.400 5.07% 

Details of shareholding held by the promoter I promoter Group: 

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31 .03.2022 % change Name of the share holder No. of 
shares 

% Held No. of shares % Held during the year 

Smt. Madhu Chaudhary 1,49,600 24.93% 1,49,600 24.93% . 
Sh. Niraj Chaudhry 61 ,600 10.27% 61.600 10.27% -
Sh. Neeraj Chaudhary (HUF) 54,300 9.05% 54,300 9.05% -
Smt. Vaishali Chaudhry 30.400 5.07% 30,400 5.07% -
Smt. Anuradha Kanodla 20,000 3.33% 20,000 3.33% -
Ms, Vaidehi Chaudhry 5,200 0.67% 5,200 0.67% -
Mis Pickup Suppliers (P) Ltd. 53,900 8,96% 53,900 6.96% -
Haryant Stainless Steel LLP 47.900 7.96% 47,900 7.98% -
Niraj Steel LLP 24,600 4.10% 24,600 4.10% -
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH 2023 (Rs. in lakh) 

Particulars 

9. OTHER EqUITY 
General Reserve 
Retained Earnings 

TOTAL: 

(I) General reserve 

As at 
31.03.2023 

168.83 
987.14 

1,155.97 

As at 31 .03.2022 

153.83 
835.33 

989.17 

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net 

income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was 
to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for 

that year, then the total dividend distribution is tess than the total distributable results for that year. 

Consequent to Introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified 
percentage of the net profit 10 general reserve has been withdrawn and the Company can optionally transfer any 
amount from Ihe surplus of profit or loss account to I~e General reserves . 

(ii) Retained Earnings 
Retained earnings are the profits that the compan)' has eamed till dale less any transfer to general reserve, 
dividends or other distribution paid to shareholders. 

10. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Unsecured Loans 
From Related Parties 0.97 
From Body-Corporate & Others 132.10 136.33 

Net Amount 132.10 137.31 

11 . DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 16.93 17.66 

TOTAL: 16.93 17.66 

As at 31st 
Recognised I 

As at 31st March 
Deferred tax balance in relation to 

March 2022 
revers ed through 

2023 
P&L 

Property, plant and equIpment 17.66 (0.73) 16.93 

Total 17.66 (0.73) 16.93 

As at 31st 
Recognised I 

As at 31st March 
March 2021 

reversed through 
2022 

P&L 
Deferred tax balance in relation to 

Property, plant and equipment 17.89 (0 .23) 17.66 

Total 17.89 (0.23) 17.66 
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SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31s1 MARCH 2023 (Rs. in lakh) 

Particu lars 

9. OTHER EqUITY 
General Reserve 
Retained Earnings 

TOTAL: 

(i) General reserve 

As at 
31.03.2023 

168.83 
987.14 

1,155.97 

[ As at 31 .03.2022 

153.83 
835.33 

989.17 

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956. a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net 

income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was 

to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for 

that year. then the total dividend distribution is tess than the total distributable results for that year. 

Consequent to Introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified 
percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn and the Company can optionally transfer any 
amount from the surplus of profit or loss account to t~e General reserves . 

(ii) Retained Earn ings 
Retained earnings are the profits that the compan~ has eamed till date less any transfer to general reserve , 
dividends or other dIstribution paid to shareholders. 

10. LONG·TERM BORROWINGS 

Unsecured loans 

From Related Parties 0.97 
From Body·Corporate & Others 132.10 136.33 

Net Amount 132.10 137.31 

11 . DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 16.93 17.66 

TOTAL: 16.93 17.66 

As at 31s t 
Recognised I 

As at 31st March 
Deferred tax ba lance in re lation to 

March 2022 
revers ed through 

2023 
P&L 

Property, plant and equIpment 17.88 (0.73) 16.93 

Total 17.66 (0.73) 16.93 

As at 31st 
RecognIsed I 

As at 31st March 
Deferred tax balance in relation to 

March 2021 
reversed th rough 

2022 
P&L 

Property, plant and equipment 17.89 (0.23) 17.66 

Total 17.89 (0.23) 17.66 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 IRs. in Lakhl 

Particulars 

12. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Secured working c:apita l Loans: 
Bank of India 

Net Amount 

As at 
31 .03.2023 

6.43 

6.43 

I As at 31 .03.2022 

0.34 

0.34 

Working capital limits are secured by first charge on the entire current assets of the company Including stocks of 
raw material , work-in-progress, finished goods. book-debts both present & future. Work ing capital limits are 
further secured by way of equitable mortgage of immovable property of the company at 0-10, B.S. Road Industrial 
Area, Ghaziabad and personal guarantee crthe directors crthe company. 

13. TRADE PAYABLE 
Dues of micro and small enterprises 
Sundry Creditors 

TOTAL: 

1.06 
95.66 

96.73 

0.81 
159.90 

160.71 

Amount due to micro and small enterprises as defined in the ~The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006- has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to micro and sma It enterprises is as below: 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier at the end of the year 
(ii) Interest due I accrued thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the 

end of the year 
(iii) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified under this Act 

Aaeina of Trade Pavables 
Outstanding for following periods from 
booking date 

Less than 1 year 
1-2 vears 
2-3 years 
More Than 3 Years 

Total 

14. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for Income tax 

sat 1. 
Undisputed 

MSME Other 
1.06 95.52 
- 0.09 
- -
- 0.05 

1.06 95.66 

1.06 0.79 

0.03 

sat 
Undisputed 

MSME Other 
0.81 159.74 
- 0.15 
- -
- 0 

0.81 159.95 

10.28 25.51 

10.28 25.51 
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VIPIN KUMAR & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 IRs. in Lakhl 

Particulars 

12. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 
Secured working capita l Loans: 
Bank of India 

Net Amount 

As at 
31.03.2023 

6.43 

6.43 

I As at 31 .03.2022 

0.34 

0.34 

Working capital limits are secured by first charge on the entire current assets of the company Including stocks of 
raw material. work-in-progress, finished goods, book-debts both present & future. Working capital limits are 
further secured by way of equitable mortgage of Immovable property of the company at D-10. B.S. Road Industrial 
Area, Ghaziabad and personal guarantee of the directors of the company. 

13. TRADE PAYABLE 
Dues of micro and small enterprises 
Sundry Creditors 

TOTAL: 

1.06 
95.66 

96.73 

0.81 
159.90 

160.71 

Amount due to micro and small enterprises as defined In the ~The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006- has been detennined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to micro and small enterprises is as below: 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier at the end of the year 
((i) Interest due I accrued thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the 

end of the year 
(iii) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appoInted day during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified under this Act 

Aaeina of Trade Pav ables 
Outstanding for following periods 
booking date 

Less than 1 year 
1-2 vears 
2-3 vears 
More Than 3 Years 

Total 

14. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
Provision for Income tax 

from sat 1. 
Undisputed 

MSME Other 
1.06 95.52 
- 0.09 
. -
- 0.05 

1.06 95.66 

1.06 0.79 

0.03 

sat 
Undisputed 

MSME Other 
0.81 159.74 

- 0.15 
- -
- 0 

0.81 159.95 

10.28 25.51 

10.28 25.51 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023 IRs. in Lakhl 

Particulars 

15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Advance from Customers 
Liabilities for Expenses 
Liabitities for Taxes 

TOTAL: 

16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
Sale of Product 

TOTAL: 

17. OTHER INCOME 
Interest 
Mise Income 

18. COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 
Cost of raw material consumed 

18.1 VALUE OF IMPORTED/INDEGENOUS RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 

DESCRIPTION 

Imported 
Imported (% of consumption) 
Indigenous 
Indigenous (% of consumption) 
TOTAL: 

19. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED & SEMI FINISHED GOODS 
Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Inventories at the end of the year 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31.03.2023 

2.72 
4.81 
2.06 

9.58 

556.94 

556.94 

69.17 
1.27 

70.44 

9.52 
274.85 
284.38 

11.47 
272.91 

Year ended on 
31.03.2023 

-
0.00% 

272.91 
100.00% 

272.91 

13.02 

9.58 

3.44 

As at 31.03.2022 

2.87 
7.31 
4.95 

15.13 

487.36 

487.36 

46.06 

46.06 

4.57 
294.18 
298.75 

9.52 
289.23 

Year ended on 
31.03.2022 

-
0.00% 

289.23 
100.00% 

289.23 

15.98 

13.02 

2.96 
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Particulars 

15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Advance from Customers 
Liabilities for Expenses 
Liabilities for Taxes 

TOTAL: 

16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 
Sale of Product 

TOTAL: 

17. OTHER INCOME 
Interest 
Mise Income 

18. COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 
Cost of raw material consumed 

18.1 VALUE OF IMPORTEDIINDEGENOUS RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 

DESCRIPTION 

Imported 
Imported (% of consumplion) 
Indigenous 
Indigenous (% of consumption) 
TOTAL: 

19. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED & SEMI FINISHED GOODS 
Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Inventories at the end of the year 

TOTAL: 

As at 
31.03.2023 

2.72 
4.81 
2.06 

9.58 

556.94 

556.94 

69.17 
1.27 

70.44 

9.52 
274.85 
284.38 

I 1.47 
272.91 

Year ended on 
31.03.2023 

-
0.00% 

272.91 
100.00% 

272.91 

13.02 

9.58 

3.44 

I Ao at 31 .03.2022 

2.87 
7.31 
4.95 

15.13 

487.36 

487.36 

46.06 

46.06 

4.57 
294.18 
298.75 

9.52 
289.23 

Year ended on 
31.03.2022 

-
0.00% 

289.23 
100.00% 

289.23 

15.98 

13.02 

2.96 
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PARTICULARS 

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

TOTAL: 

21 . FINANCE COST 
Interest on borrowings 
Bank Commission & Charges 

TOTAL: 

22. OTHER EXPENSES 
ConsumptIon of Stores & Spares 
Electricity Expenses 
Security Charges 
Repairs & Maintenance . 

Plant & Machinery 

Freight & Forwarding 
Packing Charges 
T etephone Expenses 
Printing & Stationery 
Postage & Telegram 
Travelling and Conveyance 
Legal & Professional Expenses 
Payment to Auditors as . 

Audit Fees 
for Taxation Matter 

Insurance 
Rates, Taxes & Fees 
Advertisement 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

TOTAL: 

Year ended on 
31.03.2023 

31 .32 
0.09 

31 .41 

0.86 
0.38 

1.25 

27.11 
29.31 

7.49 

1.11 
2.13 
0.36 
0.33 
0.07 
0.55 
1.33 

0.22 
0.08 
3.83 
4.32 
0.42 
0.15 

78.80 

Year ended on 
31.03.2022 

28.46 
0.04 

28.51 

5.67 
0.41 

6.08 

27.00 
33.91 
0.09 

11 .68 

1.12 
3.77 
0.33 
0.29 
0.10 
0.03 
1.44 

0.17 
0.08 
3.86 
4.25 
0.50 
0.31 

88.92 
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PARTICULARS 

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

TOTAL: 

21. FINANCE COST 
Interest on borrowings 
Bank Commission & Charges 

TOTAL: 

22. OTHER EXPENSES 
ConsumptIon of Stores & Spares 
Electricity Expenses 
Security Charges 
Repairs & Maintenance . 

Plant & Machinery 

Freight & ForwardIng 
Packing Charges 
Telephone Expenses 
Printing & Stationery 
Postage & Telegram 
Tra\lelling and Conveyance 
Legal & Professional Expenses 
Payment to Auditors as . 

Audit Fees 
for Taxation Matter 

Insurance 
Rates , Taxes & Fees 
Advertisement 
Miscellaneous Expenses 

TOTAL: 

11 

Year ended on 
31 .03.2023 

31 .32 
0.09 

31.41 

0.66 
0.36 

1.25 

27.11 
29.31 

7.49 

1.11 
2.13 
0.36 
0.33 
0.07 
0.55 
1.33 

0.22 
0.06 
3.B3 
4.32 
0.42 
0.15 

7B.BO 

Year ended on 
31.03.2022 

26.46 
0.04 

2B.51 

5.67 
0.41 

6.0B 

27.00 
33.91 
0.09 

11 .66 

1.12 
3.77 
0.33 
0.29 
0.10 
0.03 
1.44 

0.17 
0.06 
3.66 
4.25 
0.50 
0.31 

66.92 
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23. TAX EXPENSES 

(a) Income tax expense I (benefits) 
Current tax : 
Current tax 
Tax refund I reversal pertaining to earlier years 
Deferred tax : 
Deferred tax 

Total Tax expense I (benefit) 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate: 

56.48 
0.22 

(0.73) 

55.96 

25.51 
0.24 

(0.23) 

25.52 

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit I (loss) before tax at the statutory income 
tax rate to recognised Income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows: 

DESCRIP TI O N 

Net income before taxes 
Enacted tax rate in India 
Computed tax expense 
IncreaseICreduction) In taxes on account of: 
Income exempt from taxation Iltems not deductible 
Effect of tax pertaining to prior years 
Tax expense for the year 
Effective income tax rate 

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR 

222.77 
25.17% 

56.07 

0.41 
0.22 

56.70 
25.45 

100.79 
25.17% 

25.37 

2.08 
0.24 

27.68 
27.47 

Statutory Income Taxes are assessed as per the provisions of section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 , 

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
attributable to Equity Shareholders 

Weighted average No of Equity Shares 

Basic and Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) 

Face value per equity share (Rs.) 

166.80 

6,00,000 

27.80 

10.00 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

75.27 

6,00.000 

12.54 

10.00 

- - - - - -84
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23. TAX EXPENSES 

(a) Income tax expense I (benefits) 
Current tax : 
Current tax 
Tax refund I reversal pertaining 10 earlier years 
Deferred tax : 
Deferred tax 

Total Tax expense I (benefit) 

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate : 

56.48 
0.22 

(0.73) 

55.96 

25.51 
0.24 

(0.23) 

25.52 

A reconciliation of Income tax expense applicable to accounting profit I (loss) before tax at the statutory income 
tax rate 10 recognised Income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows: 

DESCRIPT I ON 

Net income before taxes 
Enacted tax rate in India 
Computed tax expense 
Increase/(reduction) In taxes on account of: 
Income exempt from taxation !Items not deductible 
Effect of tax pertaining to prior years 
Tax expense for the year 
Effective income tax rate 

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR 

222.77 
25.17% 

56.07 

0.41 
0.22 

56.70 
25.45 

100.79 
25.17% 

25.37 

2.08 
0.24 

27.68 
27.47 

Statutory Income Taxes are assessed as per the provisions of section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act. 1961 . 

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
attributable to Equity Shareholders 

Weighted average No of Equity Shares 

Basic and Diluted Earning per share (Rs. ) 

Face va lue per equity share (Rs.) 

166.80 

6.00,000 

27,80 

10.00 

- - - - - - - - - - - -

75.27 

6,00,000 

12,54 

10.00 

- - - - - -
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

25.1 Capital Risk Management 

The Company being in a capital intensive industry. its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating , healthy capital 
ratios and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to stakeholders through optimum mix of 
debt and equrty 

The Company's capttal reqUIrement is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and mterest 
on its borrowings. The principal source of funding of the Company has been. and is expected to continue to be, 
cash generated from Its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the capital markets. 

The Company regularty considers other financing and refinancing opportunities to diversify its debt profile. reduce 
interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio , and closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst 
competing capjtal expansion projects to capture market opportunities at minimum risk. 

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, 
interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents. 

DESCRIP TI ON As at 31 .03.2023 As at 31 .03.2022 
longtennborr~ngs 132.10 137.31 
Current matunties of long term debt - -
Short term borrowings 643 0.34 
less: Cash and cash equivalent (1.75) (6.67) 
Net debt 136.78 130.98 
Total equity 1,215.97 1,049.17 
GearinQ ratio 0.11 0.12 
1. Equity Includes all capital and reserves of the Company. 
2. Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowmgs. 

25.2 Categories o f fi nancial instruments 

DESCRIPT I ON As at 31.03.2023 As at 31 .03.2022 

Financial assets 
Measured at amortised cost 
Non-current investment 24.46 23.19 
T rade (eceivab~s 74.46 83.29 
Cash and cash equivalents 1.75 6.67 
Total financ ia l assets at amortised cost (A) 100.67 113.15 

Financial liabi l ities 
Measured at amortised cost 
long term Borrowings # 13210 13731 
Short term Borrowings 6.43 0.34 
Trade payables 96.73 160.71 

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised COlt (8) ee'" 235.25 298.36 

# Including current matuntles of long term debt. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - -- - - -- - --85
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

25.1 Capital Risk Management 

The Company being in a capital intenSive Industry, itS objective is to maintain a strong credit rating , healthy capital 
ratios and estabfish a capital structure that would maximise the retum to stakehotders through optimum mix of 
debt and equity 

The Company's capital requIrement Is mainly to fund its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and interest 
on its borrowmgs The principal source of funding of the Company has been. and is expected to continue to be, 
cash generated from Its operations supplemented by funding from bank borrowings and the capital markets. 

The Company regularty considers other financing and refinanCing opportunities to diversify its debt profile. reduce 
Interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portfolio. and closely monitors its judicious allocation amongst 
competing capital expansion projects to capture market opportunities at minimum risk 

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings Jess cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents. 

DESCRIPTION 
longtennborr~gs 
Current maluntles of long term debt 
Short term borrowings 
less: Cash and cash equivalent 
Net debt 
Tolal equi1y 
GearinQ ratio 
1, Equity Includes aU capItal and reserves of the Company, 
2. Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowmgs 

25.2 Categories of financial Instruments 

DESCRIPTION 

Financial assets 
Measured at amortised cost 
Non-current investment 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Total financial auets at amortised cost CA) 

Financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost 
long term Borrowings # 
Short term Borrowings 
Trade payables 

Total financlaillabllltie& carried at amortised coat (8) 
'/I including current matunt/es of long term debt. 

As aI31 .03.2023 As at 31 .03.2022 
132.10 137.31 

- -
6.43 0.34 

(1.75) (6.67) 
136.78 130.98 

1,215.97 1,049.17 
o 11 0.12 

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31 .03.2022 

24.46 23.19 
74.46 8329 

1.75 6.67 
100.67 113.15 

13210 13731 
6.43 0.34 

96.73 160.71 

= 235.25 298.36 

~ tJ)~ 
r:! ~.y 

--- - - - - -- - - - - -- - - - - - -
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26. Financial risk management 

The Company has a Risk Management Committee established by its Board of Directors for overseeing the Risk 
Management Framework and developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The risk 
management policies are established to ensure timely identifICation and evaluation of risks. setting acceptable 
risk thresholds, Identifying and mapping controls against these risks. monitor the risks and their limits, Improve 
risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management 
and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the 
Comoanv. 

The risk managemen1 policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments: 
• Market risk 
- Credit risk and 
- liquidity risk 

26.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in the market prices The Company is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to 
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates. 

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk 

exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved by the Board of 
Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk. credit risk, the use of 
financial derivatives and non·derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance 
with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Management and the internal auditors on a continuous basis. 

The Company does not enter Into or trade financiallnslruments, including derivatives for speculative purposes. 

26.1 .1 Commodity price risk 

The Company's revenue is exposed to the market risk of price fluctuations related to the sale of its products 
(Buttons). Market forces generally determine prices for the buttons sold by the Company. These prices may be 
influenced by factors such as demand and supply, production costs (including the costs of raw material inputs) 
and global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in any of these factors may reduce 
the revenue that the Company earns from the sale of its products. 

The Company primarily procured its raw materials I. e. Resin , Styrene, Pigment & Chemicals etc. in the open 
market from third parties during the financial year ended 31 .03.2023 and Is therefore subject to fluctuations in 
prices. 

The Company aims to sell the products at prevailing market prices. Similarly the Company procures key raw 
materials like Resin , Styrene. Pigment etc. based on prevailing market rates as the selting prices of buttons and 
the prices of input raw materials move in the same direction. 

The Company as a matter of policy has not hedged the comodify risk. 

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% movement in the Input price of Resin. Styrene, 

Pigments etc. The sensitivity analysis includes only 5% change in commodity prices for quantity sold or 

consumed during the year, with all other variables held constant. A positive numbe~Ow --'"lcates an increase in 

profit where the com modify prices increase by 5%. For a 5% reduction in corrimorf 

comparable impact on profit. and the balances below would be negative. ( ... 
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26. Financial risk management 

The Company has a Risk Management Committee established by its Board of Directors for overseeing the Risk 
Management Framework and developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The risk 
management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks. setting acceptable 
risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks. monitor the risks and their limits, Improve 
risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities to provide reliable information to the Management 
and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the 
ComDanv. 

The risk managemen1 policies aims 10 mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments: 
- Market risk 
- Credit nsk and 
- liquidity risk 

26.1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in the market prices. The Company is exposed In the ordinary course of its business to risks related to 
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates. 

The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk 

exposures. The use of financial derivatives Is governed by the Company's policies approved by the Board of 
Directors. which provide written principles on forelQn exchange risk. interest rate riSk, credit risk, the use of 
financial derivatives and non·derivative financial Instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance 
with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the Management and the internal auditors on a continuous basis. 

The Company does not enter Into or trade financiallnslruments, including derivatives for speculative purposes. 

26.1 .1 Commodity price risk 

The Company's revenue is exposed to the market risk of price fluctuations related to the sale of its products 
(Buttons). Market forces generally determine prices for the buttons sold by the Company. These prices may be 
influenced by factors such as demand and supply, production costs (including the costs of raw material Inputs) 
and global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in any of these factors may reduce 
the revenue that the Company earns from the sale ollts products. 

The Company primarily procured its raw materials I. e. Resin, Styrene, Pigment & Chemicals etc. in the open 
market from third parties during the financial year ended 31.03.2023 and Is therefore subject to fluctuations in 
prices, 

The Company aims to sell the products at prevailing market prices, Similarly the Company procures key raw 
malerials like Resin, Styrene. Pigment etc. based on prevailing market rates as the selling prices of buttons and 
the prices of Input raw materials move in the same direction. 

The Company as a matter of policy has nol hedged the comodity risk. 

The following table details the Company's sensitivity 10 a 5% movement In the input price of Resin, Styrene, 

Pigments etc. The sensitivity analysis includes only 5% change in commodity prices for quantity sold or 

consumed during the year, with all other variables held constant. A positive number ~~ ~tes an increase in ., 
profit where the commodity prices increase by 5%. For a 5% reduction in cOr)'lmbcl" cas, there would be a 

comparable impact on profit. and the balances below would be negative. /I • 
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DE S CR I P TI O N Increasel Decrease) 
31.oMar·23 31--Mar·22 

Resin, Styrene, Pigment etc. 13.74 14.7\\ 
(13.74) (14.71 ) 

26.1 .2 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at 
both fixed and floating Interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes 
In variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principalty denominated In rupees with a mix of fixed 

nd floating rates of interest. The Company has exposure to Interest rate risk, arising principally on changes in 
rate and USOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between 

j and floating rate borrowings. 

Itttrest rates had been 100 basis points higher J lower and all other variables were held constant, the 
Company's profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would decrease I increase by Rs.6.430/- (for the year ended 
31 March 2022: decrease I increase by Rs. 5,551/-). This is mainiy attributable to the Company's exposure to 
Interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. 

26.2 Credit risk Management 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resutting in financial loss 
to the Company. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of defauH and the risk of deterioraUon of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a pottey of only dealing with 
creditworthy counterparties. 

Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and 

nlrol relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer Is assessed based on an 

siva credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits defined in accordance with the assessment. 

~It risk on receivables is also mitigated by securing the same against letters of credit and guarantees of 

~puted nationalised and private sector banks. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread 

across diverse Industries and geographical areas with no significant concentration of credit risk . No single 

customer accounted for 10% or more of revenue in any of the years indicated. The outstanding trade receivables 

are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for conection of overdue receivables. 

Ageing of Trade Receivable 

DESCRIP TI ON 

0-180 days 
1 BO-365 days 

)lIe 365 days 

As at 
31.03.2023 

71 .80 
2.66 

As . t 
31.03.2022 

83.29 
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D E SCRIPTION Increasel Decrease) 
31.oMar·23 3100Mar·22 

Resin, Styrene. Pigment etc. 13.74 14.7\\ 
(13.74) (14.11) 

2S.1.2Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument witl fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. The Company Is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at 
both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes 
In variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees with 8 mix of fixed 

nd floating rates of Interest. The Company has exposure to Interest rate risk, arising principally on changes In 
rate and UBOR rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between 

3nd floating rate borrowings. 

rUuresl rates had been 100 basis points higher I lower and all other variables were held constant. the 
lAlmpany's profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would decrease I increase by Rs.6,430/- (for the year ended 
31 March 2022: decrease I increase by Rs. 5,5511-). This is mainty attributable to the Company's exposure to 
Interest rates on Its variable rate borrowings. 

26.2 Credit risk Management 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resutting in financial loss 
to the Company. Credit risk encompasses of both , the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a poficy of only dealing with 
creditworthy counterpart!es. 

Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and 

nlrol relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an 

::.ive credit rating scorecard and Individual credit limits defined in accordance with the assessment. 

12lt nsk on receivables is also mitigated by securing the same against letters of credit and guarantees of 

:!puted nationalised and private sector banks. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread 

across diverse Industries and geographical areas with no significant concentration of credit risk. No single 

customer accounted for 10% or more of revenue in any of the years indicated. The outstanding trade receivables 

are regularty monitored and appropriate action is taken for collection of overdue receivables. 

Ageing of Trade Receivable 

DESCRIPTION As at A .. t 
31 .03.2023 31.03.2022 

()'180 days 71 .80 83.29 
1 BO·365 days 2 .66 -

>ove 365 days - -

~~ND .' ~ 'It'*-it t: 

:jjj. 
.' , 
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26.3 Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of 
liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The 
Company requires funds both for short tenn operational needs as well as for long term capital expenditure growth 
projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, wh ich together with the available cash and 
cash equtvalents provide liquidity in the short·term and long-term. The management of the Company has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for Company's short, medium and long-term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate 
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facUities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 
flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabitities. 

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities 
with agreed repayment periods and its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on 
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the ear1iest date on which the Company can be 
required to pay, 

liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2023 

DESCRIPT I O N < 1 Year > 1 Year Total 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 74.46 - 74.46 
Cash and cash equivalents 1.75 - 1.75 
Other financial assets -
Total financial assets 76.21 - 76.21 
Financial liabilities 
Long term borrowings - 132.10 132.10 
Short term borrowings 6.43 - 6.43 
Trade payables 96.73 - 96.73 
Other financial liabilities -
Total financiall iabillti •• 103.16 132_10 235.25 

Liquidity exposure •• at 31 March 2022 

DESCR I P T ION < 1 Year > 1 Year Total 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 63.29 - 63.29 
Cash and cash equivalents 6.67 - 6.67 
Other financial assets -
Total financial8!lseta 69.96 - 69.96 
Financial liabilities 
long term borrowings - 137.31 137.31 
Short term borrowings 0 - 0 
Trade payables 160.71 - 160.71 
Other financial liabilities -
Total financiaillabilit ie. 161._05 137.31 296.36 
The Company has pledged its trade receivables and cash & cas~~f~ents in order to fulfil certain collateral 
requirements for the banking facil~ies extended to the comp.~~ . 1>. obligation to retum the securities to the 
Company once these banking facilities are surrendered. ., ~ J: 
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26.3 Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage of 
liquid funds In a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The 
Company requires funds both for short tenn operational needs as well as for long term capital expenditure growth 
projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations. which together with the available cash and 
cash equivalents provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The management of the Company has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for Company's short. medium and long-term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate 
reserves. banking facilitIes and reserve borrowing facllities. by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 
flows. and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities 
with agreed repayment periods and its non...<:Jerivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on 
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the ear1iest date on which the Company can be 
required to pay. 

liquidity exposure as at 31 March 2023 

DESCRIPTION < 1 Vear > 1 Ve.r Total 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 74.46 · 74.46 
Cash and cash equivalents 1.75 · 175 
Other financial assets · 
Total financial assets 76.21 · 76.21 
Financial liabilities 
Long term borrowings . 132.10 132.10 
Short term borrowings 6.43 · 6.43 
Trade payables 96.73 · 96.73 
Other financial liabilities · 
Total financialliabllf'ti •• 103.16 132.10 235.25 

Liquidity exposure .s at 31 March 2022 

DESCRIPTION < 1 Vear > 1 Veal' Total 

Financial assets 
Trade receivables 63.29 · 63.29 
Cash and cash equivalents 6.67 · 6.67 
Other financial assets · 
Total financial assets 89.96 · 89.96 
Financial liabilities 
Long term borrowings . 137.31 137.31 
Short term borrowings 0 · 0 
Trade payables 160.71 · 160.71 
Other finanCial liabilities · 
Total financialliabilitle. _1.61.05 137.31 298.36 
The Company has pledged its trade receivables and cash & ca ... ~rents In order to fulfil certain collateral 
requirements for the banking facilities extended to the Com,Pl;!ny,.. ts. obligation to retum the securities to the 
Company once Ihe .. banking facll~ie5 are surrendered -~(~i 
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE: 

Name of Related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the 
year:-

(a) Key Management Personnel : 
8mt. Vaishali Chaudhry 
Sh. Chaitanya Chaudhry 
Sh. Niraj Chaudhry 
Sh. Shadman Khan 

(b) Relative of Key Management Personnel : 
Sh. H. K. Chaudhry 

(c) Entities controlled bv Directors and their Relatives : 
MIs Pick Up Suppliers Pvt. Ltd. 
Himgiri Hotels Pvt. Ltd. 
Camation Projects Pvt. Ltd. 
Habitat Infrastructure Pvt. ltd. 
North India Petochemicals Ltd. 
Olive Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
Spiderman Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
Lupin Infrastructure Pvt. ltd. 
Amanat Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

The Company's related party transactions during the year are as below : 

Nature of Transaction 

Expenses 
Remuneration Paid 
Interest Paid 
Loans Taken 
Loans Repaid 

Loans Advanced 
Loans Received back 
Interest Earned 

Key Management 
Personnel 

2022-23 2021 -22 

9.60 5.4 ' 
0.03 0.80 

60.00 
0.97 116.00 

Relative of Key 
Management 

Personnel 
2022-23 2021-22 

38.58 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Entities Controlled 

by Directors & 
Their relatives I 

2022-23 2021-22 

4.81 
19.50 

100.00 

211 .50 25.02 
132.70 79.75 
68.83 33.64 

The above related party information have been disclosed to the extent such parties have been identified by the 
management on the basis of information available. Th s has been relied upon by the Auditors 

28. CONTI~GENT LIABILITIES 
. Contingent Liabilities not provided NIL (Previous Year Rs. Nil) 

, ~ ~. 
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27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE: 

Name of Related parties and description of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the 
year:-

(8) Key Management Personnel : 
Smt. Vaishali Chaudhry 
Sh. Chaitanya Chaudhry 
Sh. Niraj Chaudhry 
Sh. Shadman Khan 

(b) Relative of Kev Management Personnel : 
Sh. H. K. Chaudhry 

(c) Entitles controlled bv Directors and the!r Relatives ' 
MIs Pick Up Suppliers Pvt. Ltd. 
Himgiri Hote!s Pvt. Ltd. 
Carnation Projects Pvt. Ltd. 
Habitat Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
North India Petochemicals Ltd. 
Olive Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
Spiderman Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
Lupin Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. 
Amanat Builders Pvt. Ltd. 

The Company's related party transactions during the year are as below : 

Nature of Transaction 

Expenses 
Remuneration Paid 
Interest Paid 
Loans Taken 
Loans Repaid 

Loans Advanced 
Loans Received back 
Interest Earned 

Key Management 
Personnel 

2022-23 2021 -22 

9.60 5,4 ' 
0.03 0.80 

60.00 
0.97 116.00 

RelatiVe of Key 
Management 

Personnel 
2022-23 2021-22 

38.58 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Entities Controlled 

by Directors & 
Their relatives • 

2022-23 2021-22 

4.81 
19.50 

100.00 

211 .50 25.02 
132.70 79.75 
68.83 33.64 

The above related party information have been disclosed to the extent such parties have been identified by the 
management on the basis of information available. Th s has been relied upon by the Auditors 

28. CONTI~ENT LIABILITIES 
. Con~gent Liabilities not provided NIL (Previous Year Rs. Nil) 
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29. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS 
Capital Goods 

30. INCOME! EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

EXPENDITURE 
EARNINGS 

31 . SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

31.1 Statement of Compliance 

Current Year 

Current Year 

Nil 
Nil 

Previous Year 

Previous Year 

Nil 
Nil 

Financial Statements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 and the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules , 2016. The aforesaid financial statements have been approved by the 
Board of Directors in the meeting held on 26th May 2023. 

31.2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies. set out below and 
were consistently applied 10 all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an 
accrual method of accounting. 

Company's financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees n. which is also its functional currency. 

31.3 Property, Plant & Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. net of recoverable taxes. trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and 

any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on 

foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets . 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will now to the entity and the cost 
can be measured reliably. 

Expenses incurred relating to project , net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its 
intended use, are considered as pre· operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in • Progress. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment Is provided using straight line method based on useful tife of the 
assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
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29. VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS 
Capital Goods 

30. INCOME! EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

EXPENDITURE 
EARNINGS 

31 . SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

31 .1 Statement of Compliance 

Current Year 

Current Year 

Nil 
Nil 

Previous Year 

Previous Year 

Nil 
Nil 

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 and the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules , 2016. The aforesaid financial statements have been approved by the 
Board of Directors in the meeting held on 26th May 2023. 

31 .2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below and 
were consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise stated 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an 
accrual method of accounting. 

Company's financial statements are presented In Indian Rupees n, which is also its functional currency. 

31 .3 Property, Plant & Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost , net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and 

any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to Its working condition for its intended use. net charges on 

foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets . 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrymg amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate. 
only when it is probable that future economIc benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost 
can be measured reliably. 

Expenses incurred relating to project, net of Income earned during the project development stage prior to its 
intended use, are considered as pre· operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work· in • Progress. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment Is prOVided using straight line method based on useful life of the 
assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act . 2013 
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31.4 Inventory 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except in case of waste and scrape which are 
valued at net reahzable value. 

Cost of raw material includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition . Cost of finished goods and work In progress include cost of direct materials and labour and 

a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. 

31.5 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes 

revenues on sale of products. net of discounts, returns , sales taxes and duties when the products are delivered to 

customer or when delivered to a carrier for export sale. when significant risks and rewards of ownership pass to 

the customer. Sale of products is presented gross of manufacturing taxes like excise duty wherever applicable. 

Revenue from sale of waste and scrap are included in revenue. 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefrts will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a lime basis. using 
effective interest rate . 

31.6 Employee Benefit 
Contributions to Provident Fund. a defined contribution plan are made in accordance with the statute. and are 
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contribution . 

Company's contribution to state defined contribution plan namely, Employee State Insurance are made in 
accordance with the statute. and are recognized as an expenses when employees have rendered services 
entitling them to the contribution. 

31.7 Borrowing Cost 
Borrowmg costs that are attributable to the acquiSItion or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part 
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready 
for its Intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account. 

31.8 Foreign Currency Transaction 
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which 
it operates, The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee n. 
The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period. monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated al the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried 
at fair value that are denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when 
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit snd Loss in the period in which 
they arise. 
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31.4 Inventory 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value except in case of waste and scrape which are 
valued at net realizable value. 

Cost of raw material Includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their present 

location and condition . Cost of finished goods and work In progress include cost of direct materials and labour and 

a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs . 

31.5 Revenue Recognit ion 
Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes 

revenues on sale of products, net of discounts, returns, sales taxes and dulles when the products are delivered to 

customer or when delivered to a carrier for export sale, when sIgnificant risks and rewards of ownership pass to 

the customer. Sale 01 products Is presented gross of manufacturing taxes like excise duty wherever applicable. 

Revenue from sale of waste and scrap are included in revenue. 

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognIsed when it is probab~ that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of Income can be measured reliably. Interest income Is accrued on a time basis, using 
effective interest rate . 

31.6 Employee Benefit 
Contributions to Provident Fund, a defined contribution pian are made in accordance with the statute, and are 
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them 10 the contribution. 

Company's contribution to state defined contribution plan namely, Employee State Insurance are made In 
accordance WIth the statute, and are recognized as an expenses when employees have rendered services 
entitling them to the contribution. 

31.7 Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing costs thai are attributable to the acqUisition or construction of qualifyIng assets are capitalized as part 
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready 
for its Intended use, All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and loss account. 

31,8 Foreign Currency Transaction 
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which 
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee n. 
The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated In foreign currencies are retranslated al the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried 
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when 
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are not retranslated. 

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they arise, 
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31.9 Financial Instruments 

31.9.1 Financial Assets 

31.9.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are initially recognized at faIr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value are adjusted through profit or loss on initial recognition. 
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised uSing trade date accounting 

31 .9.1.2 Subsequent measurement 

31 .9.1.2.i Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost if It IS held within a business model whose objective is to hold the 
asset In order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

31 .9.1.2.ii Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling finanCial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are ~ely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

31.9.1.2.iii Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPl) 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

31.9.1 .3 Impairment of Financial assets 
The Company assesses on a forward k>oklng basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVQCI debt instruments The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a significant increase in credit nsk. 

31.9.2 Financial LIabilities 

31 .9.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of 
recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss as finance cost. 

31.9.2.2 Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

31.9.3 Oerecognitlon of Financial Instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financ181 asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A 
financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognlzed from the Company's Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
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31.9 Financial Instruments 

31 .9.1 Financial Assets 

31.9.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are Initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value are adjusted through profit or loss on initial recognition. 
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting 

31 .9.1.2 Subsequent measurement 

31.9.1.2.1 Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the 
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash fIO'NS that are salaty payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

31 .9.1.2.il Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is hekt within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling finanCIal assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sorety payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

31 .9.1.2.iii Finanelal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPl) 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPl. 

31.9.1.3 Impairment of Financial assets 
The Company assesses on a forward kx>king basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried 
at amortised cost and FVQCI debt instruments The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a signiftcant increase in credit nsk. 

31.9.2 Financial liabilities 

31 .9.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of 
recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss as finance cost. 

31 .9.2.2 Subsequent measurement 
Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost uSing the effective interest method For trade and other payables 
matunng within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

31.9.3 Oerecognition of Financial Instruments 
The Company derecognlzes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A 
financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) Is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the 
obligation specified In the contract Is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
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31.10 Taxation 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

31.10.1 Current Tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profrt for the year as determined in accordance with 
the provisions of section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act , 1961 . 

31.10.2 Deffered Tax 
Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered . 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the asset realised , based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

31 .11 Provision 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate , the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

31.12 Earning Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit I (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year is adjusted for treasury shares. bonus Issue. bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders . share 
split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares). 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit I (toss) after tax as adjusted for dividend. interest and 
other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the 
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share 
options by the employees. 
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31.10 Taxation 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

31.10.1 Current Tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profrt for the year as determined in accordance with 
the provisions of section 11SBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 . 

31.10.2 Oeffered Tax 
Deferred tax Is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviawed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow ali or part of the asset to 
be recovered 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which 
the liability is settled or Ihe asset realised . based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the report1ng period, 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authonty. 

31.11 Provision 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ob~gation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

31.12 Earning Per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit I (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year is adjusted for treasury shares. bonus issue. bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders . share 
split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) 

Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit I (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and 
other charges to expense or Income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, 
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the 
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares including the treasury shares held by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share 
options by the employees, 
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32. CRITICAL ESTIMATION AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which , by defin~ion , will seldom 
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company's accounting 
policies. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of 
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be d ifferent 
than those originalJy assessed. Oetailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is Included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements. 

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 

• Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment - Note 1 
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are 
detennined by the management at the time the asset Is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future 
events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence ariSing from 
changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of 
the asset. 

• Estimation of Provisions - Note 14 

• Estimation of current tax expense and payable - Note 23 
The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in detennining the provIsion for 

income taxes , if any, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. Further, 

significant judgement is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (OTA) that could be recognised 

based on the probability that future taxable profits will be available against which OTA can be utilized and amount 

of temporary difference in which OTA can not be recognised on want of probable taxable profits 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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32. CRITICAL ESTIMATION AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which . by definition. will seldom 
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company's accounting 
policies. 

This note provides an overview of the areas that Involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity. and of 
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be d ifferent 
than Ihose originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in 
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements. 

The areas InvolvIng critical estimates or jUdgements are: 

• Estimation of usefullrves of property. plant and equipment - Note 1 
Property. plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the assel base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciaUon is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its Ufe. The useful Jives and residual values of Company's assets are 
delennined by the management at the time the asset Is acquired and reviewed periodically. including at each 
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future 
events. which may impact their life. such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from 
changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of 
the asset. 

• Estimation of Provisions - Note 14 

• Estimation of current tax expense and payable - Note 23 
The Company's lax Jurisdiction Is India. Significant judgements are involved in detennining the prOVISion for 

income taxes, if any. including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. Further, 

significant judgement Is exercised to ascertain amount of deferred tax asset (DTA) that could be recognised 

based on the probability that future taxable profits will be available against which DTA can be utilized and amount 

of temporary difference In which DTA can not be recognised on want of probable taxable profits 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors. 
including expectations of future evenlS that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. 
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH 2Q23 

33. Key Ratios 

Rabo 
As at 31st As at 31st 

Vanance Reason for variance 
March 2023 March 2022 

(a) Currenl Rallo (in tunes) 1063 600 7713% The variance is Ofl account of increase 
Total CU!l1!!nt Assets in current liabitities as compared to 
Total Currenillabilities previous year. 

(b) Debl Equity Ralio (In times) 011 013 -1317% 
Iota! Debts 
Tatar EqUity 

(e) Debl SeMce Coverage RallO lin times) 2'63 056 5031 00% The vanance is on accounl of reduction 
EBIOIA In Borrowmgs as compared 10 previous 

(Interest ElCpense + PnnCIple Repayments year 
made dunng the panod for tong lerm debts) 

(d) Return on Equity RatiO (%) 1473% 744% 97.93% The vanance is on accounl of Increase 
Net Profit After TalC I" profit after to< as compared to 
Average Networth previous year 

(e) Inventory turnover Rallo (In times) 16_55 1800 -6.04% 
Cost of Goods Sold 
Average Inventory 

10 Trade Receivable turnover Ratio (10 Times) 706 646 934% 
R~~nM§: frQj!! ~!:ltl2!:! 
Average Trade Receivable 

(9) Trade Payable turnover Ratio (In TImes) 234 2.57 -6.91% 
t:!!i!! P!d~ha~§ 

Average Trade Payables 

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 047 04' -2.71% 
B!I:~n!.!§: Fr2!!! ~r~llQ!! 

Net Work.ing Capital 

(/) Net Profit MargJl'l Rabo (") 2995% 1544% 93 93% The variance is on account of Increase 
E!,Qfil A6!:r Tax jaft!:r !i!:~liQ!Jlll1Imll '" profit after la, as compared /0 

Revenue from OperatIOns previous year 

UI Return on Capital Employed (In times) 0.15 008 84.50% The vanance Is on account of increase 
Profit before Interest, TalC and Exceptional 
I!!il:m 
Average Capital Employed In profit 8S compared to previous year 
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33. Key Ratios 

.abo 

(a ) Current Ralio (in IlIneS) 
Total CU!TIml Assets 
Total Current Uabllities 

(b) Debt Equity Ratio (In times) 
Iota! Debts 
Total Equity 

(el Debt Sefvtce Coverage RatIO (In Umes) 
EBtDTA 

(Interest Expense + Pnl'lClple Repayments 
made dunn; the penod lor long term debts) 

Cd) Retum on Equity Ratio (%l 
Net Profit After Tax 
Average Nelwonh 

{el Inventory turnover Ratio (In times) 
Cost of r..wr!s Sold 
Average Inventory 

co Trade Receivable turnover Ratio (In TImes) 
Revenue from Opera\JQQ 
Average Trade Recel'lable 

(g) Trade Payable lumover Ratio (In TImes) 
Ne! PurchaseS 

Average Trade Payable' 

(h) Net Capital TumO\ler RallO (In times) 
Revenue From Operation 

Net Working Capital 

<,> Net Profit Margll'l Ratio (~) 
Profit After Tax lafter expepllonalltemsl 

Revenue from Operations 

OJ Retum on Capital Employed (In tJmes) 
Profit before Interest. Tax and ExcepUonal 
Ilem 
Average Capital Employed 

As at 311t As at 31st 
March 2023 March 2022 

1063 600 

011 013 

2863 056 

1473% 744% 

1655 1800 

706 646 

2.34 2.57 

047 048 

29 95% 1544% 

0,15 008 

Vanance Reason for variance 

n 13% The variance Is on account of Increase 
In current Habilities as compared to 
previous year. 

-1317% 

5031 00% The vanance Is on account of reduction 
In BorrowIngs as compared 10 previous 
year 

97 93% The variance Is on account of Increase 
in profit after tax as compared to 
previous year 

934% 

-8.91 % 

-2.71 % 

93 93% The varumce Is on account of increase 
in profit after tax as compared 10 
previous year 

84.50% The variance Is on accounl of JnOfaase 

In p(Ofil as compared 10 previous year 
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34. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

a. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against 
the Company for hokhng any benami property; 

b The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year; 

c. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(tes), including foreign 
entities (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invesl in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (ultimate benefICiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefICiaries. 

d. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (funding party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in wnting or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

e. The Company does not have any such transaction which Is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 
(such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961) 

f . The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or lender during the year. 

g. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period 

h Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company With banks or financial institutions are in 
agreement with the books of accounts 

i. The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it 
was obtained. 

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant 
and equipment and espial work-in-progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

35. The previous period rlQures have been regrouped I reclassified I rearranged. wherever necessary to confinn to the 
current year presentahon 

~ As per our report of even date attached 
~ 'C'. J' For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

~ Chartered AccountanlS 
z -_ - Firm Regn No 007171C 

Place: Ghaziabad ~r 
Dated: 26 05.2023 FCA 

M.No 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD 

(Val shah Chaudhry) 

Director 
Din 01719640 

0\\/ 
(Chaitanya Chaudhry) 

Oirector and CEO 
Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
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34. OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

a. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceedings has been Initiated or pending against 
the Company for hokhng any benami property: 

b The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year; 

c. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entlty(tes), including foreign 
entIties (IntermedJanes) with the understanding (hat the Intermediary shall; 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (ulhmate beneflCianes) or 

(iI) provide any guaranlee. security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefIClanes. 

d The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded In writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invast in other persons or enttbes identified In any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf or the fundmg party (ultImate benefiCiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of (he ultimate beneficiaries 

e. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(such as. search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 

f. The Company IS not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institutions or lender dunng the year. 

g. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the 
statutory period 

h Quarterly returns or statements of current assets fi~ by the Company With banks or financial institutions are in 
agreement With the books of accounts 

The Company has used the borrOWings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it 
was obtained. 

The title deeds of all the immovable properties discklsed In the financial statements included in property, plant 
and equipment and capial work·in·progress are held In the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

35. The previous period figures have been regrouped I reclassified I rearranged, wherever necessary to confinn to the 
current year presentaUon 

~ As per our report of even dale attached 
:t.,'fi-d, t. J' For SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

I¥/ Chartered Accountants 
- FIf1Tl Regn No 007171C 

Place:: haZiabad ~ 
Daled· 26 05.2023 FCA 

M.No 423453 
UDIN 23423453BGWJJT6889 

For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
Fe< NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LTD 

. 
uru-J 

(Valshali Chaudhry) 
Director 
Din 01719640 

0\Y 
(Chlitanya Chaudhry) 

Olrector and CEO 
Din 06813394 

(Shadman Khan) 
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Form	No.	MGT‐11	
Proxy	Form	

[Pursuant	to	section	105(6)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rule	19(3)	of	the	Companies	
(Management	and	Administration)	Rules,	2014]	

 
CIN: L27106DL1985PLC021811 
Name of the Company: Niraj	Ispat	Industries	Limited 
Registered Office: 5140‐41/34,	F/F	Chaudhary	Market	Gali	Peti	Wali,	Rui	Mandi,	Sadar	Bazar,		
Delhi	110006	
	
 
Name of the Member(s) : 
 
Registered Address : 
 
E-mail ID : 
 
Folio No/DPID No. : 
 
Client ID No. : 
 
 
 
I/We, being the member(s) of ………………….. Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint. 
 
1. Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature…………………………., or failing him/her 
 
2.Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature…………………………., or failing him/her 
 
3. Name………………………………………………………..,E- mail ID………………………………………… 
 
Address ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Signature…………………………., 
 
 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 38thAnnual General 
Meeting of the company, to be held on Friday, the 29nd September, 2023 at 11.00 AM at 5140-41/34, F/F 
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Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-110006, and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1) Adoption of the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
31st March 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2) Appointment of Ms. Vaishali  Chaudhry (DIN 01719640), liable to retire by rotation . 
 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
 

3) Approval for Increase in remuneration of Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry, Director and CEO (DIN: 06813394) 
 
 
 
         

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 
 

 
 
Signed this………….. day of…………………2023 
 
Signature of Shareholder      Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
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Route Map: 
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38TH	Annual	General	Meeting	
 

 
Name of the Shareholder (in Block Letter)  : ……………………………………………………………… 
Regd.  Folio No. /DP. Id/ Client Id  : …………………………………………………………….... 
Name of the Proxy (s) (in Block Letter)         : ………………………………………………………………  
(to be filled in, if a proxy attends instead  
of a member) 
No. of Shares held    : ………………………………………………………………. 
 
I certify that I am a registered Shareholders/Proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.                                     

 

I hereby record my presence at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on Friday, 29th 

September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar 
Bazar, Delhi-110006 

 
…………………………………………………                                                                
…………………………………… 

Member’s/Proxy’s Name in BLOCK Letters                                         Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 
 

Note: 
(1) Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall. 
(2) Member’s Signatures should be in accordance with the specimen signatures registered 

with the Company 
(3) Please bring your copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting  

 
*   Applicable for Members holding shares in physical form. 
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